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ABOUT THE COMPANY

The Sports Authority, Inc. (NYSE: TSA) is the largest and only
national full-line sporting goods retailer in the United States.
Headquartered in Fort Lauderdale, Florida, the Company operates

198 stores in 32 states.
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Over 11,000 employees are dedicated to serving the needs of con- LS it = LT i 3

sumers participating and/or interested in almost any type of sport,
leisure or recreational activity. Stores feature a broad assortment of quality
name brand and directly sourced merchandise in athletic footwear, apparel

and sporting equipment.

Through our partnership with Boys & Girls Clubs of America, The Sports
Authority has committed $3.3 million over a three-year period to the
creation of Fitness Authority, a health and fitness educational program that
benefits over 100,000 Boys & Girls Club kids worldwide. This multi-
faceted program features regional and national competitions in which
young people compete in physical fitness challenges with club members
from all over the world. Fitness Authority is one of the many ways The

Sports Authority hopes to encourage everyone to get out and play!

BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS
OF AMERICA
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LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS '

Dear Fellow Shareholders...
The Sports Authority—*“A Turnaround in Process”

Those among you who have followed The Sports Authority for a number of years know that our Company is in the midst of a
revitalization—a turnaround in process.

In last year’s Annual Report, I outlined a 24-month timeline necessary to effect this turnaround and the intermediate goals we needed
to achieve in fiscal 2000 to maintain this timeline.

I am very pleased to report that we are very much on plan. In fact, fiscal 2000 can best be described as a pivotal year in the history of
The Sports Authority. By cooperatively combining the experience and enthusiasm of our longer-term team members with the leadership
of our new management team, we were able to achieve a number of critical milestones:

® a reversal in sales trends resulting in the first comparable store sales increase since 1996,
¢ a $28.4 million, or 73 %, increase in EBITDA to $67.2 million, which even exceeded our internal plan,
and most importantly,
¢ a return to a modest level of profitability—the first profitable performance by The Sports Authority in three years.

While this performance exceeded the expectations of many of our constituents, neither “Wall Street” nor I will consider the turn-
around completed until we will have achieved a competitive level of return and a commensurate stock price.

Therefore, in fiscal 2001 we will work hard to continue to improve our performance. While this year has started out slowly due to a
change in the external macro-economic climate and resulting consumer cautiousness, there is a tremendous amount of opportunity
to further improve the internal efficiencies of our operations.

We are concentrating on only one priority: to provide our customers with a more fulfilling shopping experience.
We will accomplish this by focusing on three initiatives:

¢ Enhancing The Sports Authority service culture. Once an associate is selected to be part of our team, we provide them with
extensive and continuing customer service and product knowledge training. Certification programs are offered in specialties such
as footwear, skiing and golf.

¢ Better merchandise in-stock positions. The information technology we have invested heavily in over the last few years will enable
us to improve our in-stocks, while improving our inventory productivity through the use of planograms and MarketMAX.
MarketMAX will allow our merchants to create and manage assortments that focus on the
varying needs of consumers in different markets.

e Improving the visual appeal and shopability of our stores. While implementing MarketMAX-
driven planograms, we will reset all of our stores aisle by aisle. Better visual presentations
combined with more informative signing will create a more pleasant shopping environment.
We will also completely remodel up to nine of our stores.

By combining a customer-focused service culture with more reliable in-stocks, presented in a conven-
ient and pleasant store environment, we will continue as the leader and only nationally recognized
brand in the full-line sporting goods retail sector.

Opver the next two years, we plan to return The Sports Authority to a competitive level of profitabil-
ity. This, in turn, should improve our stock price and shareholder return, thereby providing us with
the “currency” to actively participate in the consolidation of our still highly fragmented retail sector.

In the following pages, we have included a Sports Authority “Road Show,” detailing further who
we are and where we plan to go. We know that you understand The Sports Authority story. Help
us spread the word!

MARTIN E. HANAKA,
Thank you for your support. CHAIRMAN AND CEO

st thaua__—

Martin E. Hanaka




THE SPORTS AUTHORITY

“ROAD SHOW?”
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e History e Critical Turnaround Actions ¢ The Sports Authority—The Brand
e Store Performance e Fiscal 2000 Actions & ¢ Fiscal 2001 Customer Service
Accomplishments Initiatives

¢ Turnaround Management Team

e Fiscal 2000 Financial
Achievements

HisTORY

Founded in 1987 in Fort Lauderdale, Florida, The Sports
Authority’s “category killer” format attracted the attention of
Kmart, which acquired the Company in 1990. After rapid store
growth, The Sports Authority was spun-out in public offerings
in 1994 and 1995 and has since traded under the ticker symbol
“TSA” on the New York Stock Exchange. Rapid new store
growth continued after the IPO. However, average per store
sales began to decline. In late 1998, Marty Hanaka was
appointed CEO of the Company and commenced assembling a

new management team.

STORE
PERFORMANCE

While North American store count increased rap-
idly until 1998, average per store sales declined
from a high of more than $9 million in 1994 to
$7.3 million in 1999. At $7.5 million, fiscal 2000

produced a positive change in this trend.




TURNAROUND
MANAGEMENT TEAM

Over the last two years, eleven of the fifteen sen-
ior managers have been changed. On average, the

new leadership team has 20 years of retail experi-

ence at diverse retailers.

CRITICAL
TURNAROUND
ACTIONS

While assembling the new management team,
immediate critical turnaround actions were taken
to stem the erosion of the Company’s financial
performance. Special charges in fiscal 1998 and

1999 were largely non-cash.

A realistic business plan for fiscal 2000 triggered
employee buy-in and laid the foundation for a

return to profitability.

Fiscar 2000 ACTIONS
& ACCOMPLISHMENTS

In fiscal 2000 we were able to achieve the first positive compa-
rable store sales increase since 1996. Merchandise margins also
improved due to more targeted pricing and better buying,
including direct sourcing. We also implemented an advertising
effectiveness study by Accenture (formerly Andersen Consulting),
resulting in a more cohesive, insert-focused advertising program.
This also contributed to the positive sales trend with improved
margins at lower advertising costs. In addition, we successfully
implemented a new merchandising software system (JDA), the hub
of our information technology architecture. This system forms

the foundation for substantial operating efficiencies going forward.




FiscAaAL 2000
FINANCIAL
ACHIEVEMENTS

Goal Actual

(0 Comparable
store sales 3% 1.8%
O EBITDA $55-60 mm  $67 mm

0 Beat analysts’ EPS expectations
@ $0.21/share

THE SPORTS

AUTHORITY —THE

BRAND

As the largest and only national full-line sporting

goods retailer in the U.S., The Sports Authority

represents a valuable, powerful brand.

In the future we plan to enhance the brand

around the “Get Out and Play” theme.

Fiscar 2000
FiNANCIAL
A CHIEVEMENTS

Financially, fiscal 2000 was a pivotal year. Com-
parable store sales increased by 1.8%, the first

increase since 1996.

At over $67 million, EBITDA exceeded our inter-
nal plan and was more than sufficient to fund
interest expense and capital expenditures, while
still allowing for a reduction in total debt. At
$0.21 per share (excluding extraordinary gains),
The Sports Authority reported its first positive

earnings in three years.

THE SPORTS
AUTHORITY

UNLEASHING THE
VALUE OF THE
BRAND

0 Largest full-line sporting goods retailer in
the U.S.
00 Only nationally recognized brand

O Expanding brand around “Get Out &
Play” theme

Customer service excellence will be critical as we
strive for differentiation through a blended assort-

ment of brand-name merchandise and margin-

» Equipping the everyday athlete in body,
mind & spirit

O Feature assortment of brand-name products

enhancing directly sourced product.

FiscAaL 2001
CUSTOMER SERVICE
INITIATIVES

O Enhance the service culture through
training and certification of associates

O Improve asset/inventory productivity by
utilizing MarketMAX and planograms
e Better in-stocks

0O Enhance the store environment
» Fixture resets
e Store remodels

Goal: Sustain the turnaround and enhance
shareholder value

combined with directly sourced products

O Strive for differentiation through customer
service excellence

CUSTOMER SERVICE
INITIATIVES

Our turnaround efforts are continuing in fiscal 2001, with par-
ticular focus on enhancing the customer shopping experience.
We are focusing on training and certifying our associates and
supporting them with the inventory and in-stocks expected by
our customers. While we will not open new stores at this time,
every store will be reset and planogrammed. Up to nine stores

will be completely remodeled.

Most importantly, in spite of an uncertain economic out-
look, we plan to sustain our turnaround, thereby enhancing

shareholder value.
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PART 1

Forward Looking Statements

Certain statements contained in or incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K constitute “for-
ward looking statements” made in reliance on the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. As such, they involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those set forth in such forward looking statements. The Company’s
forward looking statements are based on assumptions about, or include statements concerning, many
important factors, including without limitation, consumer confidence, changes in discretionary
consumer spending and consumer preferences, particularly as they relate to sporting goods, athletic
footwear and apparel and the Company’s particular merchandise mix and retail locations; the Com-
pany’s ability to effectively implement its merchandising, inventory control, marketing, store remodel-
ing, electronic commerce, and other strategies; increasing competition from other retailers; unseasonable
weather; fluctuating sales margins; product availability; and capital spending levels. The Company
undertakes no obligation to release publicly the results of any revisions to these forward looking
statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date such statements were made.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

With sales of $1.5 billion in fiscal 2000, the Company is the largest full-line sporting goods
retailer in the United States. The Company’s business strategy is to serve its customer by offering,
through multiple channels, extensive selections of quality, brand name sporting goods, athletic foot-
wear and apparel, with a focus on customer service. At February 3, 2001, the Company directly
operated 198 stores in 32 states across the United States, substantially all in excess of 40,000 gross
square feet. Another 28 stores in Japan are operated under a license agreement with the Company
by MegaSports Co., Ltd., a joint venture with JUSCO Co., Ltd. (“JUSCO?) that is now 8.4% owned
by the Company. JUSCO is a major Japanese retailer that owns 9.3% of the Company’s outstanding
shares. The Company owns 19.9% of TheSportsAuthority.com, Inc., a joint venture with a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Global Sports, Inc. Since November 1999, TheSportsAuthority.com has operated
the retail e-commerce site www.thesportsauthority.com as a “clicks” shopping alternative augmenting
the Company’s “bricks” store presence. Under the terms of the joint venture agreement, the Company’s
ownership interest can increase to 49.9%.

The Company was incorporated in Delaware in 1987. In 1990, the Company was acquired by
Kmart Corporation. Following public offerings in November 1994 and October 1995, Kmart no
longer owns any interest in the Company.

Industry Overview

According to the National Sporting Goods Association, total U.S. retail sales of sporting goods,
athletic footwear and apparel were approximately $45 billion in 1999. The retail sporting goods
industry is comprised of four principal categories of retailers: (i) traditional sporting goods retailers,
(ii) specialty sporting goods retailers, (iii) large format sporting goods retailers and (iv) mass mer-
chandisers. In addition, a variety of other retailers sell various types of sporting goods, principally
athletic footwear and apparel. Sporting goods retailing in the United States is characterized by
intensive competition among retailers, increasing competition from new channels of distribution
such as catalogs and electronic commerce, and consolidation among vendors.

Business Strategy

The Company is focused on encouraging consumers to “Get Out and Play,” and to make
participation in or attendance at almost any type of sports, leisure or recreational activity a mean-
ingful part of their lifestyle. The stores offer the extensive selection and competitive pricing



http://www.thesportsauthority.com/
http://www.thesportsauthority.com/
http://www.thesportsauthority.com/

associated with category dominant retailers while, at the same time, offering quality brand names
and high levels of customer service. The key elements of this strategy are as follows:

Store Format. 'The Company operates large format stores, substantially all of which are in excess
of 40,000 gross square feet. This format enables the Company to provide under one roof an extensive
selection of merchandise for sports and leisure activities that ordinarily are associated with specialty
shops and pro shops, such as golf, tennis, snow skiing, cycling, hunting, fishing, bowling, archery,
boating and water sports, as well as for activities ordinarily associated with traditional sporting
goods retailers, such as team sports, physical fitness, and men’s, women’s and children’s athletic
and active apparel and footwear. The average store offers over 40,000 active SKUs (excluding
discontinued items) across 27 major departments.

Quality Brand Name Sporting Goods. The Company’s merchandising strategy is to offer strong
assortments in quality brand name sporting goods in its merchandise classifications. The Company’s
comprehensive merchandise assortment includes over 700 brand names, including Adams, Adidas,
Asics, Champion, Coleman, Columbia, Cross Creek, Easton, Head, Huffy, Izod, K2, Mongoose,
New Balance, Nike, Orlimar, Penn, Prince, Proform, Rawlings, Reebok, Rollerblade, Russell, Salomon,
Shakespeare, Spalding, Taylor Made, Teva, Timberland, Titleist and Wilson. In 2000, the Company
reached an agreement to expand Salomon products in its assortment of skis, in-line skates and foot-
wear for the 2001 selling season.

Customer Service. The Company seeks to distinguish itself from other large format sporting
goods retailers, traditional sporting goods retailers and mass merchandisers by executing a sales and
service culture.

Pricing: Always Priced Right. The Company’s pricing policy is to market merchandise at prices
that are always competitive in the market at the time. The Company also seeks to be a price leader
on certain highly identifiable items.

Focus on Multi-Store Markets. The Company seeks to establish a significant presence in each of
its markets and has pursued a store expansion strategy primarily focused on opening multiple stores
in its markets. This focus enables the Company to obtain significant market penetration and to leverage
management and advertising expenses, thereby achieving greater economies of scale. In addition, the
Company believes its multi-store market strategy results in greater name recognition and enhanced
customer convenience in each market. The Company believes that achieving greater market penetra-
tion will enable it to compete more effectively and increase profitability and return on capital over
the long-term.

E-Commerce. TheSportsAuthority.com offers an online channel for customers to purchase a
wide selection of sporting goods, athletic footwear and apparel, with detailed product information,
buying guides and size charts, along with special features such as: item comparison chart, multiple
views of an item and “e-mail to a friend.” The site integrates sports related content such as “Pro
Tips,” corporate communications features, a retail store locator, and promotional and community
event listings. The Company’s joint venture partner, Global Sports Interactive, Inc., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Global Sports, Inc., contributes the technological, organizational and working capital
requirements of the joint venture. The Company licenses trademarks, service marks and domain
names, and provides content, purchasing power and vendor relationships to the joint venture. The
Company’s initial ownership in TheSportsAuthority.com of 19.9% automatically increases to 49.9% if
certain performance criteria are met by either TheSportsAuthority.com or the Company. In addition,
the Company has an option to purchase additional shares of TheSportsAuthority.com, up to 49.9%,
in certain events.

Stores

The Company’s stores are located primarily in regional strip or power centers that generally
have tenants that are value-oriented large format retailers. A small percentage of stores are located
in malls and stand alone locations. The markets in which the stores are located are listed in Item 2.
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In 2000, the Company opened three new stores, relocated two stores, closed its remaining five
stores in Canada, and closed two temporary clearance outlets and one other store. See Note 4 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part II, Item 8.

No new stores are planned to open in 2001. Over the next few years, the Company anticipates
only modest new store growth. Expansion in future years will depend on, among other things, gen-
eral economic and business conditions affecting consumer confidence and spending and, in particu-
lar, the level of consumer demand for sporting goods, the availability of adequate capital, desirable
locations at acceptable terms, qualified management personnel, the Company’s ability to manage the
operational aspects of its growth and comparable store performance.

While the Company’s expansion program in prior years has included opening stores in Canada
and Japan, the Company has exited the Canadian market and reduced its ownership interest in its
joint venture in Japan. The Company has no current plans for expansion outside the United States,
but will continue to evaluate expansion opportunities.

The Company’s expansion strategy focuses primarily on multi-store markets where it can achieve
significant market penetration and can leverage management, distribution and advertising expenses
while minimizing cannibalization of sales at existing stores. In analyzing markets, the Company evalu-
ates the market’s potential in terms of total number of store locations. Sites are selected based on demo-
graphics (such as income levels and distribution, age and family size), population, regional access,
co-tenancy, available lease or purchase terms, visibility, parking, and distance from competition.

The Company traditionally has obtained new store locations through long-term operating leases.
On an operating lease basis, the cost of opening a new store has historically approximated $2.2
million, consisting primarily of the investment in inventory, the cost of furniture, fixtures and equip-
ment and pre-opening expenses, such as the costs associated with training employees, stocking the
store and grand opening advertising. If the site requires a retrofit of an existing building, costs
(excluding furniture, fixtures and equipment) can be significantly higher. The Company currently
plans to finance substantially all of its new stores with operating leases, assuming availability and
appropriate terms.

The Company believes customers want an easy shopping environment and therefore seeks to
make shopping at its stores as convenient as possible through its extensive in-store signage and its
department placement. The Company has developed and tested a new store prototype that can be
seen in its new stores which features specialty stores within a store, interactive kiosks, in-store
customer clinics and demonstrations, and an array of audio visual entertainment. The Company
is enhancing its presentation with improved fixtures, signage, adjacencies, and increased point-of-
purchase information.

In 2000, the Company spent approximately $9.7 million refurbishing its existing stores. One
store received a comprehensive remodel featuring improved departmental adjacencies modeled after
the new store prototype. This included interactive and audio visual developments as well as new
shopping areas specifically focused on youth and team sports fans. All stores received basic renova-
tions that included relamping, new category end cap and bin signage and aisle widening. The Company
estimates capital expenditures in 2001 will be approximately $15-$20 million, primarily for refur-
bishment of existing stores and upgrades of information systems.

Store Operations and Customer Service

Each store displays merchandise in accordance with centrally developed presentation standards.
These standards are designed to provide logical department adjacencies to promote convenience and
multiple purchases of related items. The layouts for each department are also centrally developed to
ensure that each store utilizes display techniques to highlight merchandise and present a consistent
and attractive shopping environment.




The Company divides selling and non-selling functions in order to allow its sales associates to
devote their full attention to assisting customers. Non-selling duties, such as receiving and stocking,
are performed immediately before and after store operating hours.

Merchandising

The Company’s merchandising strategy focuses on offering a broader and deeper selection of
quality, brand name and private label merchandise than is generally available in traditional sporting
goods retailers. The Company’s merchandise assortment consists of a wide variety of sporting goods,
athletic footwear and apparel and accessories and is designed to meet the sporting goods needs of
its customers, from the sports enthusiast to the weekend athlete. The Company continuously intro-
duces new products under its Hot-New-Now program. The average store offers over 40,000 active
SKUs (excluding discontinued items).

The Company also tailors merchandise assortment and store space allocation to reflect cus-
tomer preferences at each store location. This is accomplished by considering geographical as well
as demographic differences by store and involves differentiation in brands, sizes, colors, fabrication
and seasonality of the assortment. For example, not all stores carry stationary bicycles or feature
water shops.

In 2000, the Company launched a team sales division to focus on direct sales of sporting
goods to schools, professional and recreational leagues, teams and cheerleading squads.

Merchandise consists of two lines: hard lines, which include equipment for team sports, fit-
ness, outdoor sports, golf, racquet sports, cycling, water sports, marine, snow sports and general
merchandise; and soft lines, which consist of athletic and active footwear and apparel. During the
past three years, hard lines constituted approximately 51% of the Company’s sales, apparel consti-
tuted approximately 22 %, and footwear constituted approximately 27%.

The hard lines and soft lines sold by the Company include the following merchandise categories:

Atbletic and Active Apparel: This category consists of both casual and leisure apparel, as well
as apparel designed and fabricated for specific sports, in men’s, women’s and children’s assortments.
Casual and leisure apparel includes basic and seasonal T-shirts, shorts, sweats and warm-ups. Per-
formance specific apparel includes offerings for sports such as golf, tennis, running, fitness, soccer,
baseball, football, hockey, and skiing. The apparel category also includes NCAA and professional
league licensed apparel.

Atbletic and Active Footwear: The footwear selection includes casual footwear intended for day
to day streetwear, as well as athletic shoes for running and walking, tennis, fitness and cross training,
basketball and hiking. In addition, the Company carries specialty footwear including a complete line
of cleated shoes for baseball, football, soccer and golf. Important categories within the footwear
department are recreational and hockey skates, and socks and accessories.

Outdoor Sports: A large assortment of merchandise is carried in the stores aimed at outdoor
sports enthusiasts. Included are camping equipment, including tents, sleeping bags and cooking appli-
ances; fishing gear, including rods, reels, terminal tackle and accessories; optics, including binoculars
and scopes; knives and cutlery; archery equipment and accessories; and marine and water sports
equipment, including navigational electronics, diving and snorkeling equipment, water skis, inflat-
able boats and rafts and accessories.

Recreational Sports: Team sports include a full range of equipment and accessories for such
sports as basketball, baseball, soccer, football, hockey and lacrosse. The golf department includes
a complete assortment of golf clubs and club sets, bags, balls, teaching aids and accessories. The
racquet sports department covers the needs of participants in tennis, racquetball, squash, bad-
minton and platform or paddle ball. The Company offers services such as racquet stringing and
trial demo periods.

Fitness Sports: The fitness category includes complete assortments for aerobic and anaerobic
workouts, including treadmills, stationary bicycles and steppers for aerobic and home gyms, weight
benches, dumbbells and free weights. In addition, the department carries a selection of boxing equip-
ment and accessories, and also features items designed for wellness and relaxation, such as massagers,




magna-therapy and nutritional supplements. An extension of the fitness category is the cycling depart-
ment, which focuses on all terrain, touring, 20” BMX and freestyle bicycles. In addition, the Company
carries accessories such as gloves, helmets, and water bottles.

Winter Sports: 'The Company offers a complete line of ski apparel, including technical outer-
wear, bib pants, thermal underwear, sweaters and accessories. The Company also offers a complete
line of skis and ski equipment, including Alpine and cross country skis, snowboards, boots, bind-
ings, goggles and accessories, as well as technical services to support new sales and tune-ups on cus-
tomer owned product.

Purchasing and Allocation

The Company maintains a central buying staff, as well as replenishment and allocation staff.
This staff manages the planning system, allocates fashion and seasonal merchandise, replenishes
basic merchandise and coordinates the distribution of all merchandise.

Under the Company’s merchandise planning system, the merchandise mix for each store is selected
by the central buying staff in consultation with field management. The system allows the Company
to manage its sales and inventory levels by store at the class level. The Company uses an automated
allocation system to allocate non-basic merchandise to stores based on planned sales and inventory
at the SKU level, as well as recent sales trends and inventory position. The Company also utilizes an
automated replenishment system for approximately 40% of its active assortment. This replenish-
ment system balances in-stock positions to satisfy customer demand with the costs associated with
carrying such inventory.

The Company currently purchases merchandise from approximately 750 vendors. The Company’s
largest vendor, Nike, Inc., accounted for approximately 12% of its total merchandise purchased in
2000. The Company is either the largest or one of the largest customers for many of its vendors,
and does not maintain any material long-term or exclusive commitments or arrangements to pur-
chase from any vendor. In 2000, Total Sports America, a division of the Company, began to imple-
ment a private label program for the Company.

Distribution

In late 1997, the Company opened its first regional distribution center (“RDC”) near Atlanta,
Georgia. The fully automated RDC serves as a total flow-through facility to receive and allocate
merchandise to the Company’s stores. Merchandise is received at the RDC, allocated, made “floor
ready” as necessary, and subsequently distributed to 152 Company stores. The Company also has a
non-automated RDC and flow-through cross-dock facility in Chino, California that supplies 27
stores and handles imported merchandise. Merchandise not distributed through the RDC’s is
shipped directly to the stores.

Information Systems

Since its inception, the Company has implemented information systems that integrate purchas-
ing, receiving, sales and perpetual inventory data on a daily basis. These systems include the functions
of automated replenishment, automated merchandising planning and allocation, electronic data inter-
change, daily tracking of in-stock levels by item and location and a “data warehouse” which gives
buying staff access to sales information on a class and sub-class level.

In 2000, the Company implemented JDA’s Merchandise Management System and began imple-
mentation of MarketMax’s Assortment and Space Planning system. JDA provides an increased level
of precision in the management and tracking of inventory and product. MarketMax enables stores
with similar characteristics to be grouped together to produce assortments and space plans that
match the individual sporting goods markets.

The Company employs point-of-sale (“POS”) terminals in all of its stores, which provide price
look-up capabilities and SKU-level sales data, capture customer telephone data and initiate requests
for authorization of the different credit and check tenders accepted by the Company. The Company
also utilizes IBM AS/400 computers and hand held radio frequency terminals at store level as in-
store processors to record merchandise receipts, produce price tickets, maintain SKU-level perpetual




inventories and for general data inquiry. These in-store processors communicate interactively with
central AS/400 computers to exchange data created at store level and the Company’s corporate
offices. These processors are intended to provide local management with the ability to more closely
manage inventory productivity and merchandise space planning, as well as reduce the amount of
employee time spent on non-selling functions.

Advertising and Promotion

The Company advertises its products and seeks to build name recognition and market share
through newspaper advertising, direct mail, broadcast media, billboards and sports sponsorships.
The focus on multi-store markets enables the Company to leverage a substantial portion of adver-
tising costs. In addition, the Company uses variable levels of advertising among different markets
based on return, and approaches each advertising event with a season-based or savings theme. During
2000, the Company implemented changes in ad content, timing and medium based on the results
of a study by Accenture (formerly Andersen Consulting) of the Company’s advertising effectiveness.
The Company’s private label credit card program launched in 1999 currently includes approximately
242,000 customers.

Competition

The Company believes that the principal strengths with which it competes are customer service,
a broad assortment of brand name merchandise, ease of shopping and a competitive pricing strat-
egy. The retail sporting goods industry is very competitive and highly fragmented, and is comprised
of the following four principal categories of retailers:

Traditional Sporting Goods Retailers. Traditional sporting goods retailers tend to have relatively
small stores, generally ranging in size from 5,000 to 20,000 square feet, frequently located in malls
or strip centers (e.g., Modell’s Sporting Goods, Champs, Dunham’s and Hibbett Sporting Goods).
These stores typically carry limited quantities of each item in their assortment and generally offer
a more limited selection at higher prices than large format stores.

Specialty Sporting Goods Retailers. Specialty sporting goods retailers include specialty shops,
ranging in size from 1,000 to 10,000 square feet, frequently located in malls or strip centers (e.g.,
Bike USA, Busy Body Fitness, Edwin Watts, Foot Locker, Footstar, Foot Action, The Athlete’s Foot,
The Finish Line and West Marine), and also include pro shops that often are single store operations.
These stores typically carry a wide assortment of one specific product category, such as athletic shoes
or golf or tennis equipment, and generally have higher prices than large format stores.

Large Format Sporting Goods Retailers. Large format stores, such as the Company’s stores, gen-
erally range in size from 30,000 to 70,000 square feet, offer a broad selection of brand name sport-
ing goods merchandise and tend to be either anchor stores in strip malls or free-standing locations
(e.g., Galyan’s, Gart Sports, Oshman’s and Dick’s Clothing and Sporting Goods). In addition, other
large format sporting goods retailers compete with certain product categories sold by the Company
(e.g., REI in outdoor sporting products).

Mass Merchandisers. Mass merchandisers are large stores, generally ranging in size from 50,000
to 200,000 square feet, featuring sporting equipment as part of their overall assortment, and are
located primarily in strip centers or free-standing locations (e.g., Wal-Mart, Target and Kmart).
These stores have limited selection and fewer brand names and also typically do not offer the cus-
tomer service offered by sporting goods retailers.

In addition, a variety of other retailers sell various types of sporting goods, principally athletic
footwear and apparel. Sporting goods retailing in the United States is characterized by intensive
competition, increasing competition from new channels of distribution such as catalogs and elec-
tronic commerce, and consolidation among vendors.

Trademarks and Service Marks
The Company uses “The Sports Authority” as its trade name and applies to qualify to do

business as such in each jurisdiction where it operates stores. The Company’s retail identity is com-
prised of the trade name, as well as a family of trademarks and service marks featuring the word




AUTHORITY, many of which are registered (or the subject of pending applications) in the U.S.
Patent and Trademark Office, the Canadian Trade-Marks Office, the Japanese Patent Office and
other applicable offices around the world. Marks registered in the U.S. Patent and Trademark
Office include AUTHORITY®, THE SPORTS AUTHORITY®, THE SPORTS AUTHORITY &
Design®, THE SKI AUTHORITY®, GOLF AUTHORITY®, TENNIS AUTHORITY® and TEAM
SPORTS AUTHORITY®, among others. In 2000, the Company filed applications to register a
number of marks, including “Get Out and Play.” The Company vigorously protects its trademarks,
service marks and trade name from infringement throughout the world by strategic registration and
enforcement efforts. Use of these marks is under license from The Sports Authority Michigan, Inc.,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Associates

As of February 3, 2001, the Company had a total of approximately 5,600 full-time and approxi-
mately 5,400 part-time associates. Of these, approximately 10,100 were employed in the Company’s
stores and approximately 900 were employed in corporate office positions, regional and district posi-
tions, and the Company’s RDCs. None of the Company’s associates is covered by a collective bar-
gaining agreement. The Company endeavors to promote new store management from its existing
personnel. The Company believes that its relationships with its associates are good.

Seasonality

The Company’s annual business cycle is seasonal, with higher sales and profits occurring in the
second and fourth quarters. In 2000, the Company’s sales trended as follows: 23.6% in the first
quarter, 26.0% in the second quarter, 22.4% in the third quarter and 28.0% in the fourth quarter.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the markets in which the
Company had stores as of February 3, 2001.

Number
United States Regions/Metropolitan Area of Stores
Northeast

BaltimMOTE.ueeiiiiiiie ettt ee e et e e e et ee e e et ——————aaaeaeeeeenanaaaraaaraaaaeeeeeeanns 4
Yo Ty o) s IS PUPRPRRRRRt 6
Hartford/NOIth HaVEN ...ccooiviiiiicciiiii ettt eete e eeratre e eeebae e e e eeaaeeeeeenssaseeeeessneeeeens 4
INEW YOIK.uutriiiiiiieeiiieeeeiee et eeeeece e e e e eeeeeeeeaabaaeeeeeeeeeeeeesssssssaasaaeeaeeeeeeeesssasssareeseeeeeeennnns 29
POrtland, ME.......coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e eeeee et e e e e e e et eee e ataaaaaraeaeeeeeeeeeaaaraarraeraeeeeeeanns 1
PhiladelPhia....veeeiceeeeiieiiieeeiee ettt ettt e ettt e et e et e e s abaessabae e e abeeeeabaeenabaeeenbaeeenbaaeentaenn 9
PrOVIAEIICE uvvveeiieeee ettt eee et e e e e e e eeeeeeeaaraaeeeeeeeeeeeeessssasaassaeeeeeeeeeenassssesrrrereeeeeeeannns 2
WashinGton, D.C..uiiiiiiiieiieieiieeetee ettt est e srte e e sbeessibeestbeesstbeesssbeesssstesssbaesnsseessssaesnsseessnsees 14
SUDBTOTA] NOITREASE uvviiiieiiiiiec ettt eeetrr e eeetr e e e e tae e e e eesarreeeeenanseeeeeesnneseeens 69




Number

United States Regions/Metropolitan Area of Stores
Southeast
AUGUSTA, GA ..ottt ettt e e ettt e e e e ettt e e s e bt e e e e e a bt tee e e bt e e e e e et aeeeeeaabataeeeearbaaeeann 1
PN 0 o LSRN 11
(@] 1T (1 o) WS EEURRRRRRRRNE 1
(@] 173 o u LSRRt 3
CRaTEANIOOZA  1eeuuveeeeiieeerteeeetieeetteeetteeetteeesteeeetaeeeseaeassseesnsseeassseesssseeassseeeasseeesssaesssseesnsssasansseennes 1
FaYELLEVIILE «.etiiieiie ettt ettt e et e e et e e et eeeaeeessbeeeesseeeassaaeasseaesssaeeasseasessaeansseenne 1
e VLY OIS ettt ettt e ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e se e et e e e e e e e e e e e anebbe et teeeeeeeeaeeaan 1
GAINESVIIIE, FL..uuniieiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e eee ettt e e e e e e e eeee s aaaeaereeeeeeeeeesesssssassereeeeeeeseesesanssrenens 1
(@ TS 01 Yo ) o VSRRt 1
GIEENIVILLE, SC ettt e e e e e e e e e et eeeeeeeeeeeesessssaaseereeeeeeeeeesenannsserans 1
JACKSONVILLE ..ttt e e et e e e e et e e e e e taeeeeeeaaaeee e e ssaaeaeeenssasaeeanneeeas 2
IMLEIMIPRIS 1einetieieiiie ettt eette et e e et e e et e e ettt e e e tbeeeentteessaeeeanseaeasseeeasseeeasseeeassaasasseeesnsaaeasssaeasssaeasneennes 1
IMLOMEGOIMETY ittt e et e e e e ettt et et e e e e e e s e aae e ettt eeeeeeaeea e nsssseteteeeeeeeeeeaaannnssbeaeeeeaeeesasaannnn 1
IMYTEIE BEACK 1eeinviiieiieeee ettt ettt e e et e st e e et e e e e bee e e baeeenaeeeebaaeenneeenes 1
N APLES 1etieteeeiiieeteeeetee et e et e et e e bt e e sttt e e teeeesbee e st e e e s tee e sbaeeanaeeeanaaeeanbeeeanaeeeanbaaeentaeeenstaeenrnaean 1
BN o N2 11 (OSSR 2
INEW OFLEANS weeiiiiiiiiieceeeee e e et e e e ee e et aa e e e e e e eeeeeeesssssaaaeeeeeeeeeseeeaessaasessreesaeeeeesnnnns 1
NOTTOIK/HAMPLON 1eeuvvieiiiieeeiiieeiieeeeieeeeieeesteeesreeesteeessteeessseaessseesasseeessseesasseesssseesasssesssssesesseeenn 3
(@73 35 Ve Lo TSRt 7
S ST Tele ) - H SRS 1
21 1T s USRS 1
Yo s 1T 1oy ol 2 () o T £ FO SN 16
TaAmMPA/St. PeterSDUIZ .. eiiitiiieeiieiiiie ettt ettt et e et e et e e e aee e s teeessbeeeesaeeesnsaasensaessssaasensseens 11
WWANSTON-SALEIII .oeiiiiiiiieiiiiiieee e e e e e e e ee et eeeeeeeeeeeeessssaaeeseeeeeeeeeeessssasessreeseeeeeesnnnns 1
SUDTOTAl SOULRNEAST..uvvviiieiriiiieeeiieiee ettt ettt certr e e eetree e e eeraaeeeeeesaaeeeeeesaaseeesensnseeeeeeanneeeeens 71
Midwest
CRICAZO vveuveentteeiterte et et e ettt e st e et e e tee st e e bt e s st e esseesaseesseesaseessaesssessbaessseensaesssesnseensseenseesssesseesnsens 14
) D2 5 o) | SO UUPUPUPPPRRRPRNt 7
MaAISON, WL ...eiiiiiiiieiriiee ettt ee ettt eeeetv e e e eeettr e e e eeetaaeeeeeetasseeeeesssseeeeeestssseeeesssseseeenssseeeeensssseeeens 1
OMMANA 1oiiiiceec ettt et e e e ee e aa e e e eeaateeeeearaaeeeetraaeeeenaaraeeeentreeas 1
. LLOULS 1ttttttttittieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaearsssessasaaaanaanannnsaaaeaeeeeaesaeessessssssssssssssssssssnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnenns 6
SUDEOTAL IMIAWESE wevvvvevveeieeeeee ettt eee et e e e e e e e e e e e e aaaaaaeeeeeeeeseeesessnsssssaeeereeeeesenssnnnns 29
Southwest
| | TSRS 1
2 = Yo YRS 1
LLaS VBZAS ittt ettt et e e e ettt e et e e e e e e e e e bttt e e e e e e e e e e e aan 2
| B (S e Yol SN 1
o TeTS 1 L RSN 7
U SO teeeeeeeeee e e ee e ettt e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeaeaaaesssressesaararassrsaassaannnnnnaaaeeeeeaeeeeaeaaeens 1
SUDTOTAl SOUTRWEST..vvviiiiiriiiieeeiieiee ettt ettt eeete e e eetr e e e eesaseeeeeesaaeeeeeesssseeeeensanreeeeesnneeeeens 13
Northwest
ANCROTAZE 1ottt ettt et s e et e st e et e st e e st e s et e e btessbeessaessseeseesrseenseesnseennseensaenns 1
SEALLIE/TACOIMIA 1vveeeeevviieeeeireeeeeeeteeeeeeeetreeeeeeeteeeeeeetreeeeeeessseeeeensaseeeeesssseeeensssseeeenssseeeeensreseeeenses 3
SUDLOTAL INOTTRWESE 1vvvveviiiiiiieeeeeieetee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeseeesessnsssssseeeeeeeeesesennnnns
West
5 (03 1o o1 L SN 3
ST 1 Lo JO SRRt 1
LLOS ANEEIES «.veiieitiieetieeetie et ete et e e et e e et e e et e e e te e e s bt e e eae e e e bt e e e bee e e tae e e teeeetaeeanaeaeanrtaeasraeane 1
SACTAIMIEIITO e ettttieeeeeeeettieeeeeeeett i ieeeeeeettt e eeesesasneaeeessasnnnaeesssssnnnaseessssnnnnseesssssnnnseeessssnnnseessssnnnnnaees 2
SN DIEZO c ettt ettt ettt ettt e e e e e ettt e et e e e e e e e e bbeeeeeeeeeeeeaeanan S
SUDTOTAL WS 1vvviiieeiriieeeeetieee ettt ceetee e e eetre e e eerte e e e eeaaaeeeeesssaeeeeesssaeeseeenssseeeeensnseeeeeesnnneeeans 12
R0 2] B e B 2 1 N 198




As of February 3, 2001, the Company occupied 18 owned stores and 180 stores pursuant to
long-term leases. The leases typically provide for an initial 10 to 25 year term with multiple five-
year renewal options. In most cases, the Company’s leases provide for minimum annual rent subject
to periodic adjustments, plus other charges, including a proportionate share of taxes, insurance and
common area maintenance. Fifty-seven of the Company’s store leases are guaranteed by Kmart.

The Company leases a building at 3383 N. State Road 7, Fort Lauderdale, Florida, containing
approximately 106,000 square feet, that houses its corporate offices, with a remaining primary term
of 7 years and two 10-year renewal options.

During 2000 and through March 31, 2001, the Company terminated, assigned, or subleased
in whole or in part the leases for 10 of the 23 stores closed or relocated in 1999 and 2000, and
continues its efforts to dispose of the remaining closed stores.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is one of thirty-three defendants, including firearms manufacturers and retailers,
in City of Chicago and County of Cook v. Beretta U.S.A. Corp. et al, Circuit Court of Cook County,
Illinois. This suit was served on the Company in November 1998. The complaint was based on
legal theories of public nuisance and negligent entrustment of firearms and alleged that the defendant
retailers sold firearms in the portion of Cook County outside Chicago that were found illegally in
Chicago. The complaint sought damages allocated among the defendants exceeding $358.1 million
to compensate the City of Chicago and Cook County for their alleged costs (of which the complaint
enumerates a total of $153 million) resulting from the alleged public nuisance. The complaint also
sought punitive damages and injunctive relief imposing additional regulations on the methods the
defendant retailers use to sell firearms in Cook County. In February 2000, the Court dismissed the
complaint’s negligent entrustment count. The plaintiffs filed an amended complaint with the Court’s
permission in March 2000, which contains both the public nuisance and negligent entrustment counts.
In September 2000, the Court granted the motions of the defendants to dismiss the amended com-
plaint with prejudice. In October 2000, the plaintiffs appealed to the Appellate Court of Illinois,
First Judicial District. The Company is currently unable to predict the outcome of this case.

There are various other claims, lawsuits and pending actions against the Company incident to
its operations. In the opinion of management, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have
a material effect on the Company’s liquidity, financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF
SECURITY HOLDERS

None.




PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Price Range of Common Stock

The Common Stock of the Company is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”)
under the symbol “TSA.” The following table sets forth, for the fiscal quarters indicated, the high

and low market prices for the Common Stock as reported on the NYSE.

High Low

Fiscal 1999
1st Quarter $8.50 $4.00
2nd Quarter 8.06 2.81
3rd Quarter 4.38 2.19
4th Quarter 3.25 1.63

Fiscal 2000
1st Quarter 3.63 1.88
2nd Quarter 3.06 1.13
3rd Quarter 2.69 1.38
4th Quarter 4.26 1.00

As of April 30, 2001, the Company had approximately 2,061 shareholders of record.
Dividend Policy

The Company did not declare any dividends in 1999 or 2000 and intends to retain its earnings
to finance future internal investments. Therefore, the Company does not anticipate paying any cash
dividends in the foreseeable future. The declaration and payment of dividends, if any, is subject to
the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Company and to certain limitations under the General

Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. In addition, certain agreements contain restrictions
the Company’s ability to pay dividends. The timing, amount and form of dividends, if any, will
depend, among other things, on the Company’s results of operations, financial condition, cash

requirements and other factors deemed relevant by the Board of Directors.

on




ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial data set forth below reflects the historical results of opera-
tions, financial position and operating data of the Company for the periods indicated and should be
read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included elsewhere herein.

Fiscal Year Ended (1)

February 3, January 29, January 24, January 25, January 26,
(in thousands, except per share data) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Statement of Operations Data:
Sales $1,498,844  $1,492,860 $1,599,660 $1,464,565 $1,271,296
Gross margin 400,891 360,564 390,959 419,537 365,373
License fees and rental income 2,748 1,829 841 3,345 3,165
Selling, general and
administrative expenses 371,222 394,963 410,730 365,363 304,955
Pre-opening expense 2,131 1,609 11,194 10,570 11,408
Goodwill amortization — 1,963 1,963 1,963 1,963
Store exit costs 2,763 8,861 39,446 4,302 —
Corporate restructuring — (700) 3,930 — —
Impairment of long-lived assets — 88,751 13,457 — —
Operating income (loss) 27,523 (133,054) (88,920) 40,684 50,212
Interest, net 20,744 15,287 11,965 5,952 2,180
Gain on deconsolidation
of joint venture — (5,001) — — —
Income (loss) before income taxes
and extraordinary gain 6,779 (143,340) (100,885) 34,732 48,032
Income tax expense (benefit) — 22,721 (35,028) 14,730 19,597
Minority interest — — (2,066) (2,191) (1,570)
Income (loss) before
extraordinary gain 6,779 (166,061) (63,791) 22,193 30,005
Extraordinary gain, net of tax 18,647 5,517 — — —
Net income (loss) $ 25426 $ (160,544) $ (63,791) 22,193 $ 30,005
Basic earnings (loss) per
common share:
Income (loss) before
extraordinary gain $ 21 % (5.19) $ (2.01) 0.70 $ 0.96
Extraordinary gain .57 17 — — —
Net income (loss) $ 78  $ (5.02) $ (2.01) 0.70 $ 0.96
Diluted earnings (loss)
per common share:
Income (loss) before
extraordinary gain $ 21 $ (5.19) $ (2.01) 0.70 $ 0.94
Extraordinary gain .57 17 — — —
Net income (loss) $ 78 $ (5.02) $ (2.01) 070 $ 0.94




Fiscal Year Ended (1)

February 3,

January 29, January 24, January 25,

January 26,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Percent of Sales Data:
Gross margin 26.7% 24.2% 24.4% 28.6% 28.8%
Selling, general and
administrative expenses 24.8 26.5 25.7 24.9 24.0
Operating income (loss) 1.8 (8.9) (5.6) 2.8 4.0
Income (loss) before income taxes
and extraordinary gain 0.5 (9.6) (6.3) 2.4 3.8
Selected Financial and Operating Data:
End of period stores 198 203 226 199 168
Comparable store sales
increase (decrease) (2) 1.5% (3.4)% (3.7)% (2.2)% 3.3%
Inventory turnover 2.8 2.9 3.1 3.1 3.2
Weighted average sales
per square foot $ 175 $ 172 $ 177 $ 193 § 203
Weighted average sales per store
(in thousands) 7,545 7,390 7,661 8,334 8,819
Average sale per transaction 47.68 45.67 46.53 46.54 45.99
End of period inventory net of
accounts payable per store
(in thousands) 1,495 1,250 831 900 729
Capital expenditures (in thousands) 35,879 31,640 84,561 114,271 102,165
Depreciation and amortization
(in thousands) 40,840 46,908 47,921 37,314 28,506
Balance Sheet Data—End of Period:
(in thousands)
Working capital (3) $160,200 $ 62,102 $ 30,545 $ 99,710 $175,997
Total assets 662,547 643,003 897,454 807,990 750,158
Long-term debt 205,100 126,029 173,248 157,439 152,021
Stockholders’ equity 142,317 116,110 272,912 333,551 310,317

(1) The fiscal years ended February 3, 2001 and January 29, 2000 consisted of 53 weeks. All other fiscal

years shown each consisted of 52 weeks.

(2) Reflects comparable store sales, excluding sales from stores closed during the respective fiscal years.
Including sales from closed stores, total company comparable store sales increased by 1.8%.
(See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations).

(3) The increase in working capital in 2000 resulted primarily from a change in the terms of the Company’s
committed revolving credit facility and the resulting reclassification of outstanding borrowings thereunder.




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the Company’s statement of operations data as a percent of sales
for the periods indicated.
Fiscal Year Ended

February 3, January 29,  January 24,

2001 2000 1999
Sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of merchandise sold, including buying and occupancy costs 73.3 75.8 75.6
Gross margin 26.7 24.2 24.4
License fees and rental income (0.2) (0.1) (0.1)
Selling, general and administrative expenses 24.8 26.5 25.7
Pre-opening expense 0.1 0.1 0.7
Goodwill amortization — 0.1 0.1
Store exit costs 0.2 0.6 2.5
Corporate restructuring — — 0.3
Impairment of long-lived assets — 5.9 0.8
Operating income (loss) 1.8 (8.9) (5.6)
Interest, net 1.3 1.0 0.7
Gain on deconsolidation of joint venture — (0.3) —
Income (loss) before income taxes and extraordinary gain 0.5 (9.6) (6.3)
Income tax expense (benefit) — 1.5 (2.2)
Minority interest — — (0.1)
Income (loss) before extraordinary gain 0.5 (11.1) (4.0)
Extraordinary gain, net of tax 1.2 0.3 —
Net income (loss) 1.7% (10.8)% (4.0)%

The following table sets forth the Company’s store openings and closings for the periods indicated.
Fiscal Year Ended

February 3, January 29,  January 24,

2001 2000 1999
Beginning number of stores (a) 201 226 199
Openings S 3 30
Closings (a) (8) (15) (3)
Deconsolidation of joint venture — (13) —
Ending number of stores 198 201 226

(a) The beginning number of stores for the 53 weeks ended February 3, 2001 excludes two clearance stores,
opened on a test basis in previously closed store sites, and subsequently re-closed in the second quarter of
2000. The clearance centers were also excluded from the fiscal 1999 ending number of stores and store
openings.

Fiscal Years Ended February 3, 2001 (fiscal 2000) and January 29, 2000 (fiscal 1999)

Sales for the 53 weeks ended February 3, 2001 were $1,498.8 million, an increase of $5.9 million,
or 0.4%, from sales of $1,492.9 million for the fiscal year ended January 29, 2000. The Company
closed 8 stores in 2000 and 15 stores in 1999 pursuant to its store exit plans. Additionally, in the
second quarter of 2000, the Company closed two clearance centers opened in previously closed
locations. Sales in 2000 include $21.0 million from closed stores, as compared to $60.0 million
in the prior year.

Excluding the impact of store closings, sales increased $45.0 million, or 3.1%. Of this increase,
$24.5 million, or 1.7%, was attributable to stores opening in 2000 and 1999 which had no compa-
rable sales in the prior year, and $22.5 million, or 1.5%, was due to an increase in comparable




store sales from continuing stores. The remaining change in sales of ($2.0) million, or (0.1%) of
sales, was due primarily to an increase in the Company’s reserve for sales returns and the impact
on comparable store sales of adding six days to the fiscal 1999 calendar.

The increase in comparable store sales for the year reflected the execution of a number of turn-
around initiatives, including changes in the Company’s advertising, pricing and buying strategies, to
increase traffic into the stores and to improve sales conversions. These initiatives, combined with high
demand for trend items such as scooters and “ab rollers,” spurred sales in the key categories of fit-
ness, footwear and ladies activewear. Increases in these categories were somewhat offset by contin-
ued declines in outdoor categories such as hunting and fishing, which reflected particularly soft
sales in the fourth quarter of 2000. As a result of its initiatives, quarterly comparable store sales
from continuing stores increased during the first three quarters of 2000, culminating with a 4.9%
increase in the third quarter. Comparable store sales slowed in the fourth quarter, primarily due to
national macro-economic trends, and were essentially flat to the prior year.

License fees and rental income were $2.7 million in 2000, compared to $1.8 million in 1999.
License fees consist primarily of royalty fee income earned under a license agreement between the
Company and Mega Sports, Inc. (“Mega Sports”) of $2.4 million and $1.6 million in 2000 and
1999, respectively. (See Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Royalty fees
under a license agreement with TheSportsAuthority.com, Inc., which commenced in the fourth
quarter of 1999, were $0.2 million in 2000 and nominal in 1999. The Company also has a license
arrangement for the sale of diving merchandise in three stores. Sales of licensee merchandise are
excluded from the Company’s total sales.

The major components of cost of merchandise sold are merchandise costs (including distribu-
tion) and, to a lesser extent, certain occupancy costs. Cost of merchandise sold decreased from
75.8% of sales in 1999 to 73.3% of sales in 2000, a decrease of 2.5% of sales. In 1999, merchan-
dise costs included a $28.9 million charge for markdowns on aged inventory, closed store liquida-
tions and inventory shrink. Excluding the 1999 charge, cost of merchandise sold decreased 0.7%
of sales, due to reduced inventory markdowns combined with improved product pricing.

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses in 2000 were $371.2 million, or 24.8%
of sales, compared to $395.0 million, or 26.5% of sales in the prior year. The 1.7% of sales decrease
resulted from a 1.4% of sales decline in advertising expenditures consistent with the fiscal 2000
advertising plan, and a 0.5% of sales reduction in depreciation expense as a result of the fourth
quarter 1999 impairment charge.

Pre-opening expense was $2.1 million in 2000 compared to $1.6 million in 1999. The increase
in expense correlates to the increase in store openings, from three stores in 1999 to five stores in 2000.
On a per store basis, pre-opening costs declined in 2000, largely due to a reduction in grand-open-
ing advertising. Pre-opening expense consists principally of store payroll expense for associate train-
ing and store preparation prior to a store opening, operating expenses and grand-opening
advertising costs.

Store exit costs were $2.8 million in 2000, compared to $8.9 million in 1999. The 2000 charge
reflected a $4.0 million increase of reserves established under prior store exit plans due to changes
in the estimated time and rate to sublease or assign remaining real estate. The charge was partially
offset by a $1.2 million net gain on the lease termination for one store closed in the fourth quarter
of 2000. Store exit costs represent estimated costs to be incurred beyond the store closing date,
including rent, common area maintenance charges, real property taxes and employee severance.
(See Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Operating income was $27.5 million, or 1.8% of sales in 2000, compared to an operating loss
of $133.1 million, or (8.9)% of sales in 1999. Exclusive of pre-opening expense, goodwill amortiza-
tion and restructuring charges, the 1999 operating loss was $32.6 million, or (2.2)% of sales. By
comparison, operating income before pre-opening expense and store exit costs was $32.4 million,
or 2.2% of sales in 2000, an increase of $65.0 million.
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Interest, net was $20.7 million, or 1.3% of sales in 2000, compared to $15.3 million, or 1.0%
of sales in 1999. Interest expense increased as a result of refinancing a portion of the 5.25% Con-
vertible Subordinated Notes due September 2001 (the “Notes”) with higher rate borrowings under
the Company’s committed revolving credit facility (“Credit Facility”). The Company recorded an
extraordinary gain in connection with the Notes purchases, as discussed below. Additionally, the
borrowing rate under the Credit Facility increased due to a general rise in market rates combined
with an increase in the interest margin charged by the lender pursuant to an amendment to the
Credit Facility in August 2000. The Company’s weighted average interest rate on Credit Facility
borrowings was 9.1% in 2000 compared to 7.4% in 1999.

Exclusive of income taxes on extraordinary gains, the Company has a nominal effective tax
rate in 2000 due to the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards. The Company recorded a
$2.0 million tax provision for estimated alternative minimum taxes and state taxes related to the
extraordinary gain on early extinguishment of debt. In 1999, the Company recorded a valuation
allowance on 100% of the Company’s deferred tax assets, based on a presumption that the realiza-
tion of such tax assets could not be reasonably assured given operating losses of the Company at
that time. In 2000, the Company reduced this valuation allowance by $9.3 million, primarily due
to the utilization of $22.7 million in net operating loss carryforwards. Further reductions will be
made as the deferred tax assets are realized or when management believes the aforementioned pre-
sumption can be overcome, principally by sufficient profitable operating results. The Company
expects that its effective tax rate in 2001 will be significantly below the statutory rate due to the
availability of remaining federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $4.7
million and $100.0 million, respectively, as well as other tax deductible timing differences.

The Company recorded an extraordinary gain of $18.6 million, net of tax, on the early extin-
guishment of $81.3 million principal amount of the Notes for $60.0 million. In 1999, the Company
recorded a gain of $5.5 million, net of tax, on Notes purchases. As a result of its cumulative pur-
chases, the Company’s remaining obligation under the Notes, which mature in September 2001, was
approximately $45 million at February 3, 2001.

As a result of the foregoing factors, net income was $25.4 million in 2000, as compared to a
net loss of $160.5 million in the prior year.

Fiscal Years Ended January 29, 2000 (fiscal 1999) and January 24, 1999 (fiscal 1998)

Sales for the 53 weeks ended January 29, 2000 were $1,492.9 million, a $106.8 million, or
6.7% decrease from sales of $1,599.7 million for the fiscal year ended January 24, 1999. Sales in
fiscal 1998 include $84.9 million from Mega Sports, not comparable to the 1999 year due to the
deconsolidation of the joint venture in 1999. Sales from stores closed during 1998 and 1999 were
$78.8 million in the 1998 period, compared to $11.3 million in 1999.

Excluding the impact of the deconsolidation of Mega Sports and the store closings, sales increased
$45.6 million, or 2.9%. Of this increase, $85.6 million, or 5.3%, was attributable to stores opening
in 1998 and 1999 which had no comparable sales in the prior year, and approximately $15.7 million,
or 1.0%, was attributable to adding six days to the 1999 fiscal year. These increases were offset by
a decrease in comparable store sales of $55.7 million, or 3.4%, excluding the impact of store clos-
ings and declines in the hunting category due to the discontinuance of handgun sales and the reduc-
tion of rifle and hunting assortments in early 1999. The decrease in comparable store sales reflected
weakness in the key categories of footwear, golf and men’s apparel.

License fees and rental income was $1.8 million in 1999, compared to $0.8 million in 1998.
License fees in 1999 include $1.6 million in royalty fee income under the Mega Sports license agree-
ment. Prior to 1999, intercompany royalty fees were eliminated due to consolidation of Mega Sports
in the Company’s results of operations. License fees in 1998 include fees earned under a license
agreement for the sale of winter sports merchandise, which was terminated in 1998.

Cost of merchandise sold increased from 75.6% of sales in 1998 to 75.8% of sales in 1999, an
increase of 0.2% of sales. This increase was attributable to an increase in occupancy costs of 0.3%
of sales resulting from the decline in sales productivity. Merchandise costs were flat at 67.4% of sales
in both years, and included charges of $28.9 million and $24.1 million in 1999 and 1998, respectively.




The charges related to markdowns for aged inventory, liquidations at closing stores and, in 1999,
inventory shrink. Excluding these charges, merchandise costs decreased 0.5%, from 65.9%
of sales in 1998 to 65.4% of sales in 1999, as a result of improved purchase markons.

SG&A expenses in 1999 were $395.0 million, or 26.5% of sales, compared to $410.7 million,
or 25.7% of sales in the prior year. The increase as a percentage of sales resulted from the decline
in sales productivity and an increase in advertising expenditures to drive traffic into the stores.

Pre-opening expense in 1999 was $1.6 million, or 0.1% of sales, compared to $11.2 million,
or 0.7% of sales in 1998. The decrease in expense reflected the reduction in store openings, from
30 stores in 1998 to three full-line stores in 1999. During 1999, the Company also opened two clear-
ance stores, on a test basis, in previously closed locations. No pre-opening expense was incurred on
these clearance store openings.

In the fourth quarter of 1999, the Company recorded charges aggregating $156.5 million, of
which $28.9 million was applicable to the inventory related charges discussed previously, and $127.6
million was comprised of the following: $8.9 million for store exit costs; $88.8 million for asset
impairments, including goodwill of $46.9 million; $28.8 million for tax charges, net of expected
tax refunds; and $1.3 million for cumulative translation losses related to the Canadian subsidiary.

The store exit charge related to the closure of five Canadian and two domestic locations, all
of which were closed in 2000. With the closing of the five Canadian stores, the Company ceased
its operations in Canada. The Company’s results of operations include Canadian store sales of $3.4
million, $28.4 million and $31.0 million in 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively, and operating losses
excluding restructuring charges of $0.2 million, $4.4 million and $3.7 million, respectively.

Based on continued declines in store operating performance, the Company evaluated the recov-
erability of its store-level assets pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards No. 121 (“SFAS 1217).
The Company recorded a $41.9 million impairment charge on property and equipment at 40 stores
based on a determination that the carrying value of assets at these locations exceeded estimated future
cash flows. Estimated future cash flows were based on the Company’s fiscal year 2000 budget and
internal projections for years beyond 2000. The charge included $3.8 million for the writedown of
assets at seven now closed locations.

An impairment charge of $46.9 million on the Company’s enterprise-level goodwill was recog-
nized pursuant to a change in the Company’s method of measuring the recoverability of goodwill.
The Company changed from the undiscounted cash flows method to the market value method,
whereby impairment is measured by the excess of the Company’s net book value over its market
capitalization. Since the excess of the Company’s net book value over its market capitalization
exceeded the carrying value of the Company’s goodwill, the remaining value of goodwill was
written off.

In conjunction with closing the Canadian subsidiary, the Company recognized $1.3 million in
cumulative translation adjustments, previously a component of stockholders’ equity, as required by
Financial Accounting Standards No. 52. This charge was included in SG& A expenses.

Corporate restructuring of ($0.7) million related to the settlement of the Company’s obligation
under an employment contract with a former executive. The initial reserve for this obligation was
included in the Company’s 1998 restructuring charge. As a result of the settlement, the Company
reversed the remaining reserve under this contract in 1999.

The operating loss was $133.1 million, or (8.9)% of sales in 1999, as compared to $88.9 mil-
lion, or (5.6)% of sales in 1998. The operating loss before pre-opening expense, goodwill amortiza-
tion and restructuring charges was $32.6 million, or (2.2)% of sales in 1999, versus $18.9 million,
or (1.2)% of sales for the preceding year.

Interest, net was $15.3 million, or 1.0% of sales in 1999, compared to $12.0 million, or
0.7% of sales in 1998. The increase of $3.3 million was due to an increase in borrowings under
the Company’s current and prior revolving credit facilities, combined with an increase in the bor-
rowing rate under the current facility. The Company’s weighted average interest rate on revolving
credit borrowings was 7.4% in 1999, compared to 6.6% in 1998.




In March 1999, the Company reduced its ownership interest in Mega Sports. Accordingly, the
Company discontinued consolidation of the results of Mega Sports in 1999 and recorded a gain on
deconsolidation of $5.0 million, or 0.3% of sales.

Income tax expense on loss before extraordinary gain was $22.7 million in 1999, compared to
an income tax benefit of $35.0 million in 1998. The 1999 amount includes a $37.6 million valua-
tion allowance on the Company’s U.S. deferred tax assets as of the beginning of fiscal 1999, and a
$5.7 million writeoff of Canadian deferred tax assets. These charges were partially offset by an esti-
mated $18.7 million tax refund expected to be generated by the carryback of the Company’s 1999
net operating loss. The Company’s effective tax rate in 1998 was 34.7%.

As discussed previously, in the third quarter of 1999, the Company recorded an extraordinary
gain of $5.5 million, net of tax, on the early extinguishment debt.

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Company’s 1999 net loss was $160.5 million, as com-
pared to $63.8 million in the prior year.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s principal capital requirements are to fund working capital needs as well as for
capital expenditures on hardware and software upgrades, store refurbishments and new store open-
ings. In 2000, these capital requirements were generally funded by cash flow from operations and
borrowings under the Credit Facility. Cash flows generated by (used for) operating, investing and
financing activities for 2000, 1999 and 1998 are summarized below.

Net cash provided by (used for) operations was $22.0 million in 2000, as compared to ($78.9)
million in 1999 and $7.5 million in 1998. In 2000, the increase in cash flow resulted primarily from
income before non-cash charges and the extraordinary gain of $51.1 million, and an income tax refund
of $21.7 million. These increases were partially offset by an increase in inventory of $45.8 million
due to the slowdown in sales in the fourth quarter and to incremental merchandise purchases asso-
ciated with the conversion of the Company’s merchandise management system. The Company largely
completed the system conversion in the fourth quarter of 2000 and has reduced inventory levels in
line with its plans. By comparison, operating cash flows decreased in 1999 due to management’s
decision to accelerate vendor payments during the fourth quarter. Therefore, inventory financed by
accounts payable declined from 49.0% at the end of 1998 to 26.9% at the end of 1999. Inventory
financing remained relatively flat in 2000, and was 24.7% at February 3, 2001. The Company has
ongoing obligations for lease and other occupancy costs at closed stores. Payments under the store
exit plans aggregated $15.9 million, $10.3 million and $0.8 million in 2000, 1999 and 1998,
respectively, and are expected to approximate $15 million in 2001.

Net cash provided by (used for) investing was ($37.9) million in 2000, as compared to $11.1
million in 1999 and ($78.2) million in 1998. Investing activities in 2000 consisted primarily of capi-
tal expenditures, while 1999 included the sale-leaseback of eight owned properties for an aggregate
sales price of $46.8 million. Capital expenditures were $35.9 million in 2000, and consisted of $18.0
million for upgrades to information systems, $9.7 million to refurbish existing stores, $6.5 million
for five new stores, and $1.7 million for RDC and corporate improvements.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $11.6 million in 2000, as compared to $63.6
million in 1999 and $72.0 million in 1998. Cash provided by financing activities consisted princi-
pally of borrowings under the Company’s Credit Facility with a group of lenders led by Fleet Retail
Finance, Inc. (formerly BankBoston Retail Finance, Inc.). Borrowings increased $74.1 million in
2000 and were used to fund working capital needs, store refurbishment, upgrades to information
systems and the Notes purchases. In 2000, the Company purchased $81.3 million principal amount
of the Notes for $60.0 million.

In December 1999, the Credit Facility was amended to increase maximum borrowings from
$200 million to $275 million and to extend the maturity date of the facility from April 2002 to
September 2003. In August 2000, the Credit Facility was amended to increase the committed line
of credit from $275 million to $335 million. In conjunction with this increase, the Company mort-
gaged 19 owned store locations, with a net book value of $83.5 million, to supplement its existing




pledge of inventory and accounts receivable. Subsequent to February 3, 2001, the Company mort-
gaged one additional owned property, with a net book value of $2.6 million. Borrowings under the
Credit Facility are limited to a borrowing base determined primarily by advance rate percentages
applied against eligible inventories and the mortgaged real estate.

The Company’s working capital at February 3, 2001 was $160.2 million, as compared to $62.1
million at January 29, 2000. The increase of $98.1 million resulted primarily from reclassification
of borrowings under the Credit Facility from short-term to long-term debt in 2000, based on the
revised terms of the amended Credit Facility. Borrowings under the Credit Facility were $203.8
million and $129.7 million at February 3, 2001 and January 29, 2000, respectively. Conversely,
the remaining Notes obligation of approximately $45.0 million was reclassified from long-term
to short-term debt based on a September 2001 maturity.

The Company substantially curtailed expansion in 2000 and 1999, and currently plans to open
no new stores in 2001. The Company estimates capital expenditures in 2001 will be approximately
$15-$20 million, primarily for refurbishment of existing stores and upgrades of information sys-
tems. The Company is exploring additional distribution channels in 2001, including catalog and
team sales, but anticipates that the initial investment in these initiatives will be nominal in 2001.

The Company believes that anticipated cash flows from operations, combined with borrowings
under the Credit Facility, will be sufficient to fund working capital, finance capital expenditures and
retire the remaining Notes obligation during the next 12 months.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 133, Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended, which is required to be adopted by
the Company in 2001. The Company generally does not use derivatives; accordingly, management
does not anticipate that the adoption of the new Statement will have a significant effect on earnings
or the financial position of the Company.

In May 2000, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a consensus in EITF Issue No.
00-14, “Accounting for Certain Sales Incentives.” Under this consensus, the estimated cost of sales
incentives such as coupons and rebates must be treated as a reduction of revenue in the period in
which the related sale is recognized. Currently, the Company classifies the cost of sales incentives as
a component of merchandise costs or as SG&A expense, depending on the incentive. The EITF has
deferred the effective date of Issue No. 00-14 until the quarter beginning after March 15, 2001. The
Company will early adopt Issue No. 00-14 in the first quarter of 2001, and expects that this adop-
tion will have no impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations, other than
the reclassification of such costs in the statement of operations. Such reclassifications are not
expected to be material.

Seasonality and Inflation

The Company’s annual business cycle is seasonal, with higher sales and profits occurring in the
second and fourth quarters. In 2000, the Company’s sales trended as follows: 23.6% in the first
quarter, 26.0% in the second quarter, 22.4% in the third quarter and 28.0% in the fourth quarter.

Management does not believe inflation had a material effect on the financial statements for the
periods presented.

Forward Looking Statements

Refer to Forward Looking Statements in Part I.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company has no material exposure to the market risks covered by this Item.
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for the integrity and consistency of all financial information presented
in this Annual Report. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and include certain amounts based on
Management’s best estimates and judgments as required.

Management has developed and maintains a system of accounting and controls designed to
provide reasonable assurance that the Company’s assets are protected from improper use and that
accounting records provide a reliable basis for the preparation of financial statements. This system
includes policies which require adherence to ethical business standards and compliance with all laws
to which the Company is subject. This system is continually reviewed, improved and modified in
response to changing business conditions and operations. The Company’s comprehensive internal

audit program provides for constant evaluation of the adequacy of and adherence to Management’s

established policies and procedures; the extent of the Company’s system of internal accounting con-
trols recognizes that the cost should not exceed the benefits derived. Management believes that assets
are safeguarded and financial information is reliable.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the years ended February 3, 2001
and January 29, 2000 have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent certified public
accountants. Their report, which appears herein, is based upon their audits conducted in accord-
ance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. These standards include a
review of the systems of internal controls and tests of transactions to the extent considered neces-
sary by them for purposes of supporting their opinion.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is comprised solely of Directors who are not
officers or employees of the Company. The Committee is responsible for recommending to the
Board of Directors the selection of independent certified public accountants. It meets periodically
and monitors the financial, accounting and auditing procedures of the Company in addition to
reviewing the Company’s financial reports. The Company’s independent certified public accountants
and The Sports Authority’s internal auditors have full and free access to the Audit Committee.

Wt &, thasa— (2 Mbaddl

Martin E. Hanaka George R. Mihalko
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors and Stockholders
The Sports Authority, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Sports Authority, Inc.
as of February 3, 2001 and January 29, 2000, and the related consolidated statements of opera-
tions, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended
February 3, 2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examin-
ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by man-
agement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of The Sports Authority, Inc. at February 3, 2001, and the consoli-
dated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years then ended, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

é/wvt 2 LLP

Miami, Florida
March 23, 2001




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
The Sports Authority, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, of changes in stockholders’
equity and of cash flows for the year ended January 24, 1999 present fairly, in all material respects,
the results of operations and cash flows of The Sports Authority, Inc. for the year ended January
24,1999, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. We have not audited the consolidated financial statements of The
Sports Authority, Inc. for any period subsequent to January 24, 1999.

1
mﬂﬁdﬂlﬁﬁuﬁ.ﬂffﬁtg’ L fg

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Fort Lauderdale, Florida
April 6, 1999




THE SPORTS AUTHORITY, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

Sales
License fees and rental income

Cost of merchandise sold, including buying
and occupancy costs

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Pre-opening expense

Goodwill amortization

Store exit costs
Corporate restructuring
Impairment of long-lived assets

Operating income (loss)

Interest:
Interest expense
Interest income

Interest, net
Gain on deconsolidation of joint venture

Income (loss) before income taxes and extraordinary gain
Income tax expense (benefit)
Minority interest

Income (loss) before extraordinary gain
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes of $2,000
and $3,678, respectively

Net income (loss)

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share:
Income (loss) before extraordinary gain
Extraordinary gain, net of tax

Net income (loss)

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic

Diluted

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Fiscal Year Ended

February 3,

January 29,

January 24,

2001 2000 1999
$1,498,844 $1,492.860 $1,599,660
2,748 1,829 841
1,501,592 1,494,689 1,600,501
1,097,953 1,132,296 1,208,701
371,222 394,963 410,730
2,131 1,609 11,194
— 1,963 1,963
1,471,306 1,530,831 1,632,588
2,763 8,861 39,446
— (700) 3,930
— 88,751 13,457
2,763 96,912 56,833
27,523 (133,054) (88,920)
21,734 17,657 13,197
(990) (2,370) (1,232)
20,744 15,287 11,965
— (5,001) —
6,779 (143,340) (100,885)
— 22,721 (35,028)
— — (2,066)
6,779 (166,061) (63,791)
18,647 5,517 —
$ 25426 $ (160,544) $ (63,791)
$ 21 $ (5.19) $ (2.01)
.57 17 —
$ .78 $ (5.02) $ (2.01)
32,295 32,003 31,768
32,311 32,003 31,768

@



THE SPORTS AUTHORITY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEE

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

Assets

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Merchandise inventories
Receivables and other current assets

Total current assets

Net property and equipment
Other assets and deferred charges

Total Assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable—trade
Accrued payroll and other current liabilities
Current debt
Taxes other than income taxes
Income taxes

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value; 100,000 shares authorized;
32,449 and 32,264 shares issued, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Deferred compensation

Accumulated deficit
Treasury stock, 56 and 55 shares, respectively, at cost

Total stockholders’ equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders” Equity

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Ts

February 3,

January 29,

2001 2000
$ 7,535 $ 11,814
393,087 347,273
32,690 55,264
433,312 414,351
212,991 213,638
16,244 15,014
$ 662,547 $ 643,003
$ 97,097 $ 93,584
114,990 111,392
45,756 130,544
10,380 12,894
4,889 3,835
273,112 352,249
205,100 126,029
42,018 48,615
520,230 526,893
324 323
252,279 251,991
(83) (574)
(109,683) (135,109)
(520) (521)
142,317 116,110
$ 662,547 $ 643,003
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Balance, January 25, 1998

Common stock issued

under stock plans
Common stock re-issued

under stock plans
Common stock retired

under stock plans
Amortization of

deferred compensation
Stock options exercised
Treasury stock acquired
Comprehensive loss:

Net loss

Cumulative

translation adjustment

Comprehensive loss
Balance, January 24, 1999

Common stock issued

under stock plans
Common stock retired

under stock plans
Common stock cancelled

under stock plans
Treasury stock re-issued
Amortization of

deferred compensation
Comprehensive loss:

Net loss

Cumulative

translation adjustment

Comprehensive loss
Balance, January 29, 2000

Common stock issued
under stock plans
Common stock cancelled
under stock plans
Treasury stock re-issued
Amortization of
deferred compensation
Net income and
comprehensive income

Balance, February 3, 2001

THE SPORTS AUTHORITY, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
(IN THOUSANDS)
Accumulated
Retained Other Com-
Additional Earnings prehensive
_ Common Stock  pyig iy Deferred  (Accumulated Treasury  Income
Shares  Amount  Capital ~ Compensation  Deficit) Stock (Loss) Total
31,539 $316  $247,140 $(1,589) $ 89,226  $(494) $(1,048)  §$ 333,551
140 2 1,445 (794) 653
105 1 999 1,000
2) (25) 25 —
1,827 1,827
120 1 1,465 1,466
(7) (33) (33)
(63,791) (63,791)
(1,761) (1,761)
(65,552)
31,895 320 251,024 (531) 25,435 (527) (2,809) 272,912
322 3 1,012 (660) 355
2) (25) 25 —
(7) (20) (20)
1 6 6
592 592
(160,544) (160,544)
2,809 2,809
(157,735)
32,209 323 251,991 (574) (135,109) (521) — 116,110
214 1 350 (174) 177
(30) (62) 10 (52)
9 1 10
646 646
25,426 25,426
32,393 $324  $252,279 $ (83 $(109,683)  $(520) $ —  §$142317

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE SPORTS AUTHORITY, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(IN THOUSANDS)

Fiscal Year Ended

February 3, January 29, January 24,

2001 2000 1999
Cash Provided by (Used for):
Operations
Net income (loss) $ 25,426 $(160,544) $(63,791)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to operating cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization 40,840 46,908 47,921
Extraordinary gain (20,647) (9,195)
Gain on deconsolidation of joint venture — (5,001) —
Impairment of long-lived assets — 88,751 13,457
Accrual for store exit costs 3,513 8,861 39,446
Other non-cash items—net 325 3,762 478
Change in deferred tax assets — 43,313 (25,107)
Change in other assets (335) 3,167 (7,552)
Change in other long-term liabilities (5,214) (1,340) 5,993
Cash provided by (used for) current assets and liabilities:
Change in income taxes receivable 22,976 (21,313) —
Increase in inventories (45,814) (5,544) (40,289)
Change in accounts payable 3,513 (64,801) 31,605
Other—net (2,628) (5,921) 5,344
Net cash provided by (used for) operations 21,955 (78,897) 7,505
Investing
Capital expenditures (35,879) (31,640) (84,561)
Net proceeds from sale of property and equipment — 45,845 9
Deconsolidation of joint venture — (3,127) —
Other—net (2,000) (16) 6,353
Net cash (used for) provided by investing (37,879) 11,062 (78,199)
Financing
Borrowings under revolving credit facility, net 74,132 80,277 44,509
Proceeds from short-term debt — — 9,646
Proceeds from long-term debt — — 16,578
Purchase of convertible notes (59,965) (14,015) —
Proceeds from sale of stock and treasury stock 272 359 2,035
Debt issuance costs (1,326) (2,158) —
Payments under capital lease obligations (1,468) (821) (769)
Net cash provided by financing 11,645 63,642 71,999
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (4,279) (4,193) 1,305
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,814 16,007 14,702
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 7,535 $ 11,814 $ 16,007
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Interest paid, net of amount capitalized $ 20,647 $ 15,375 $ 15,854
Income taxes (refunded) paid, net (22,029) (7,177) 3,291
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Purchase of assets under capital lease financing 2,881 — 7,192

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




THE SPORTS AUTHORITY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: The Company

The Sports Authority, Inc. (“The Sports Authority” or “Company”) is the largest full-line
sporting goods retailer in the United States. At February 3, 2001, the Company operated 198
stores, substantially all in excess of 40,000 square feet, in 32 states across the United States.

The Company’s Japanese joint venture, Mega Sports Co., Ltd. (“Mega Sports”) operates 28 The
Sports Authority stores in Japan pursuant to a license agreement with the Company. The Company
owns 8.4% of the outstanding stock of Mega Sports, which was formed in January 1995 pursuant
to the Company’s joint venture agreement with JUSCO Co., Ltd. (“JUSCO”), a major Japanese
retailer which owns 9.3% of the Company’s outstanding stock.

The Company also owns 19.9% of TheSportsAuthority.com, Inc., a joint venture with Global
Sports Interactive, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Global Sports, Inc., which operates the
e-commerce business of the Company. Under the terms of the joint venture agreement, the Com-
pany’s ownership interest can increase up to a total ownership of 49.9%. In addition, the Company
has the option to purchase additional shares of TheSportsAuthority.com, Inc., up to a total owner-
ship of 49.9%, upon certain events.

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The Company’s significant accounting policies are described below.

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation: The Company prepares its financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. These principles
require management to (1) make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, (2) disclose contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial state-
ments and (3) report amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Fiscal Year: During 1999, the Company revised its fiscal calendar to end the 1999 fiscal year
on Saturday, January 29, 2000, and to cause all succeeding years to end on the Saturday closest to
the end of January. This change added six days to the 1999 fiscal year, which were included in the
Company’s results of operations. Prior to 1999, the Company’s fiscal year ended on the Sunday prior
to the last Wednesday in January. The 2000 and 1999 fiscal years each consisted of 53 weeks. The
1998 fiscal year consisted of 52 weeks and ended on January 24, 1999.

Basis of Consolidation: The Company includes its wholly-owned and majority-owned sub-
sidiaries in the consolidated financial statements. All intercompany transactions and amounts have
been eliminated in consolidation.
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Earnings Per Share: 'The Company calculates earnings per share (“EPS”) in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128 (SFAS 128), “Earnings Per Share,” which
requires a dual presentation of basic and diluted EPS. A reconciliation of the basic and diluted EPS
computations is illustrated below:

(in thousands, except per share data) 2000 1999 1998
Basic EPS Computation

Income (loss) before extraordinary gain $ 6,779 $(166,061)  $(63,791)
Weighted average common shares 32,295 32,003 31,768
Basic earnings (loss) before extraordinary gain per common share $ .21 $  (5.19) $§ (2.01)

Diluted EPS Computation

Income (loss) before extraordinary gain $ 6,779 $(166,061)  $(63,791)
Weighted average common shares 32,295 32,003 31,768
Effect of stock options 16 — —
Total shares 32,311 32,003 31,768
Diluted earnings (loss) before extraordinary gain per common share $ 21 $ (5.19) $ (2.01)

The computation of diluted EPS for all years presented excludes shares issuable under the
Company’s 5.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes due September 2001 (the “Notes”) because
the issuance of the shares would be antidilutive. The computation also excludes the effect of stock
options, aggregating 3,013,760, 2,859,927 and 2,934,197 in 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively,
which would be antidilutive.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The Company considers cash on hand in stores, deposits in banks,
certificates of deposit and short-term marketable securities with original maturities of 90 days or
less to be cash and cash equivalents.

Inventories: Merchandise inventories are valued on a first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis at the
lower of cost or market using the retail inventory method.

Property and Equipment: Land, buildings, leasehold improvements and furniture, fixtures and
equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of related
assets on the straight-line method for financial statement purposes and on accelerated methods for
income tax purposes. Most store properties are leased and improvements are amortized over the
term of the lease but not more than 10 years. Other estimated useful lives include 40 years for
building, seven years for store fixtures and five years for other furniture, fixtures and equipment.

Impairment of Property and Equipment: In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 121 (“SFAS 1217), “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of,” the Company evaluates the carrying value of property and
equipment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such
assets may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recorded when the net book value of assets
exceed their fair value, as measured by projected undiscounted future cash flows.

Goodwill: In 1999, the Company changed the method by which it evaluates the recoverability
of goodwill from the undiscounted cash flow method to the market value method. As a result of this
change, the Company recorded an impairment charge for the remaining carrying value of its good-
will in 1999. (See Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). Previously, goodwill
was amortized on a straight-line basis over 40 years.
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Financial Instruments: The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate fair
value of the Company’s financial instruments:

e The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts
payable approximate fair value due to their short-term nature.

e The fair value of the Company’s note receivable is based on current interest rates and repay-
ment terms of the note. (See Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

e The carrying value of current debt approximates fair value due to its short-term nature.

® Market prices were used to determine the fair value of the Notes.

As of February 3, 2001, the Notes outstanding had a carrying value of $44.8 million and a
fair value of $42.5 million, and the note receivable had a carrying value of $5.0 million and a fair
value of $4.5 million.

Revenue Recognition, License Fees and Rental Income: Merchandise sales are recognized at the
point of sale. The Company has license agreements with Mega Sports and TheSportsAuthority.com,
Inc. under which the Company receives royalty fees. (See Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements). Additionally, the Company sells diving merchandise in three locations
through a license agreement under which the Company receives a percentage of product sales in
exchange for rent and services. Such license fees and rental income are recognized on an accrual
basis. Sales of licensee merchandise are excluded from total sales. The Company adopted Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 101 (“SAB 101”), “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements,” in the
fourth quarter of 2000. Such adoption did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
position or results of operations.

Advertising Costs: Production costs are expensed upon first showing of the advertising, and
other advertising costs are generally expensed as incurred. The Company participates in cooperative
advertising with its vendors under which a portion of advertising costs are reimbursed to the Company.
Advertising expenditures, net of cooperative advertising reimbursements, were $30.8 million, $51.4
million, and $47.0 million in 2000, 1999, and 1998, respectively.

Pre-Opening Costs: In 1999, the Company adopted Statement of Position No. 98-5 (“SOP 98-57),
“Reporting on the Costs of Start-Up Activities.” SOP 98-5 requires that start-up and pre-opening costs
be expensed as incurred effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1998. Previously,
start-up costs were expensed in the month the store opened. The adoption of SOP 98-5 did not
have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial position.

Store Closing Costs: The Company provides for future net lease obligations, severance pay-
ments and other expenses related to store closings in the period that the Company commits to a
plan of exit. Reserves are evaluated periodically based on actual costs and changing market condi-
tions, and are adjusted for significant changes in estimates.

Income Taxes: The Company provides for income taxes currently payable or receivable, deferred
income taxes resulting from temporary differences between the book and tax bases of assets and lia-
bilities, and valuation allowances on its deferred tax assets in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 109 (“SFAS 109”), “Accounting for Income Taxes.”

Foreign Currency Translation: The financial statements of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries
were maintained in their functional currencies and translated into U.S. dollars in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 52. Assets and liabilities were translated at cur-
rent exchange rates existing at the balance sheet date and stockholders’ equity was translated at
historical exchange rates. Revenues and expenses were translated at the average exchange rate for
the period. In 1999, the Company recognized cumulative translation adjustments of $2.8 million
due to the deconsolidation of Mega Sports and the discontinuance of operations in Canada.
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Comprebensive Income: Comprehensive income represents the change in equity arising from
non-owner sources, including net income (loss) and other comprehensive income items such as for-
eign currency translation adjustments and minimum pension liability adjustments. Prior to 2000,
the Company’s comprehensive income (loss) consisted of net income (loss) and foreign currency
translation adjustments. In 2000, the Company had no other comprehensive income items.

New Accounting Pronouncements: In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Statement No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as
amended, which is required to be adopted by the Company in fiscal year 2001. The Company gen-
erally does not use derivatives; accordingly, management does not anticipate that the adoption of the
new Statement will have a significant effect on earnings or the financial position of the Company.

In May 2000, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a consensus in EITF Issue No. 00-
14, “Accounting for Certain Sales Incentives.” Under this consensus, the estimated cost of sales incen-
tives such as coupons and rebates must be treated as a reduction of revenue in the period in which the
related sale is recognized. Currently, the Company classifies the cost of sales incentives as a component
of merchandise costs or as SG& A expense, depending on the incentive. The EITF has deferred the
effective date of Issue No. 00-14 until the quarter beginning after March 15, 2001. The Company will
early adopt EITF Issue No. 00-14 in the first quarter of 2001, and expects that this adoption will have
no impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations, other than the reclassification
of such costs in the statement of operations. Such reclassifications are not expected to be material.

Reclassification: ~Certain amounts in the prior year’s financial statements have been reclassified
to conform to the current year’s presentation.

Note 3: Related Party Transactions
Japanese Joint Venture:

The Company has a license agreement with Mega Sports which permits Mega Sports to use
certain trademarks, technology and know-how of the Company in exchange for royalty fees of
1.0% of Mega Sports’ gross sales in 1999, 1.1% in 2000 and 1.2% in 2001 through 2005. Mega
Sports has the option of extending the license agreement for three ten-year periods expiring in 2035.
The Company’s results of operations in 2000 and 1999 include royalty fees of $2.4 million and $1.6
million, respectively, pursuant to the license agreement. In 1998, royalty fees were eliminated due to
consolidation of the joint venture in the Company’s results of operations. The Company discontinued
consolidation of the joint venture in 1999 upon a reduction of its ownership interest, and recorded a
$5.0 million gain on deconsolidation.

JUSCO provides management and other services to Mega Sports pursuant to a services agree-
ment with the joint venture, for which it receives a fee equal to 1.0% of Mega Sports’ gross sales
and reimbursement of reasonable expenses. The Company’s results of operations for fiscal 1998
include fees paid by Mega Sports to JUSCO totaling $0.8 million.

E-Commerce Joint Venture:

In May 1999, the Company entered into a license agreement with TheSportsAuthority.com, Inc.
(“TSA.com”) which licenses certain trademarks, service marks, domain names, content, purchasing
power and vendor relationships to the joint venture. The license agreement expires on December 31,
2014 or upon the earlier termination of other agreements with or relating to TSA.com. The Company
and TSA.com also entered into an e-commerce agreement under which the Company will furnish
certain purchasing, merchandising and management services, for which TSA.com will reimburse
all reasonable costs incurred, while TSA.com will furnish all the services necessary to operate the
e-commerce website. Royalty fees under the license agreement were $0.2 million in 2000, and were
nominal in 1999.
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Note 4: Restructuring and Impairment Charges
Store Exit Costs:

The Company recorded store exit costs of $2.8 million, $8.9 million and $39.4 million in 2000,
1999 and 1998, respectively. The 2000 charge related principally to a $4.0 million increase in reserves
established under prior store exit plans based on changes in the estimated time and rate to sublease
or assign certain locations. The charge was partially offset by a net $1.2 million gain on the lease
termination of one store approved for closure in 2000 pursuant to a favorable lease buy out agree-
ment. This store closed in the fourth quarter of 2000.

The 1999 charge related primarily to closure of five Canadian and two U.S. stores. The Canadian
stores were closed in the first quarter of 2000, and the two U.S. stores by the end of the third quarter
of 2000. The 1998 charge related to the announced closure of 18 underperforming stores, including
two in Canada. As a result of favorable market and lease factors, the Company decided not to close
three stores and reversed its exit reserves for these stores in 1999. The remaining 15 stores were
closed in the first quarter of 1999.

As part of its store closures, the Company ceased its Canadian operations in 2000. The
Company’s results of operations include sales of $3.4 million, $28.4 million, and $31.0 million in
2000, 1999, and 1998, respectively, from the Canadian stores, and operating losses before restruc-
turing charges of $0.2 million, $4.4 million, and $3.7 million, respectively.

The Company is actively marketing its closed store sites. During 2000, the Company assigned or
sold its lease rights under six leases, and entered into long-term sublease arrangements on three others.

Following is a summary of activity in the store exit reserves:

Lease and
Related Fixed Employee

(in thousands) Obligations Assets Severance Other Total

Balance at January 24, 1999 $ 32,419 $ 9,264 $ 671 $ 661 $43,015
Reserves for 1999 store closing plan 7,540 — 251 372 8,163
Adjustment of prior year reserves 413 (494) (189) 969 699
Reclassification of accrued step rent 673 — — — 673
Payments and asset disposals (8,573) (8,496) (485) (1,193) (18,747)
Balance at January 29, 2000 32,472 274 248 809 33,803
Reserves for 2000 store closing 194 — 100 174 468
Adjustment of prior year reserves 3,519 (167) 676 4,028
Payments and asset disposals (14,551) (25) (345) (992) (15,913)
Balance at February 3, 2001 $ 21,634 $§ 82 $ 3 $ 667 $22386

Corporate Restructuring:

In 1998, the Company recorded a $3.9 million charge for employment contract obligations to
several departing executives. In the first quarter of 1999, the Company negotiated the settlement
of one contract and reduced the corporate restructuring reserve by $0.7 million. The Company has
satisfied its obligations under these contracts.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets:

The Company recorded impairment charges under SFAS 121 of $41.9 million and $13.5 million
in 1999 and 1998, respectively. The Company wrote down the assets at 40 stores in 1999, and six
stores in 1998, based on a determination that the carrying value of assets at these locations exceeded
estimated future cash flows. The 1999 charge included a write off of assets at seven stores to be
closed or relocated.
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In 1999, the Company changed its method of evaluating the recoverability of goodwill from
the undiscounted cash flow method to the market value method. Under the market value method,
impairment is measured by the excess of the Company’s net book value over its market capitaliza-
tion. The Company believes the market value method is preferable because it results in a more
objective measurement of recoverability and better reflects the value of goodwill as perceived by
investors. The change in method resulted in the write off of the remaining carrying value of good-
will of $46.9 million. This change represented a change in method which is inseparable from a
change in estimate and, accordingly, the effect of the change has been reflected as an impairment

charge in the accompanying 1999 statement of operations.

Note 5: Receivables and Other Current Assets

Receivables and other current assets consists of the following:

(in thousands)

Income taxes receivable

Other receivables, net of allowances of $1,253 and $1,820, respectively

Prepaid expenses
Total

Note 6: Property and Equipment

Net property and equipment consists of the following:

(in thousands)

Land

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Property under capital leases
Construction in progress

Less—accumulated depreciation and amortization
Total

Note 7: Other Assets and Deferred Charges

Other assets and deferred charges consist of the following:

(in thousands)

Lease costs, net

Note receivable

Debt issuance costs and loan fees, net
Deferred loss on sale/leaseback of property
Deposits and other

Total

February 3, January 29,
2001 2000
$ — $ 22,976
19,813 18,289
12,877 13,999
$ 32,690 $ 55,264
February 3, January 29,
2001 2000
$ 38,946 $ 38,946
65,051 64,991
64,306 60,566
217,142 186,464
5213 2,332
— 140
390,658 353,439
(177,667) (139,801)
$ 212,991 $ 213,638
February 3,  January 29,
2001 2000
$ 6,045 $ 4,363
4,983 5,182
2,335 2,837
2,090 2,235
791 397
$ 16,244 $ 15,014
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Lease costs consist of costs to acquire or execute leases, which are deferred and amortized on
a straight-line basis over the remaining lease terms of the stores. Deferred costs at February 3, 2001
relate primarily to the unamortized acquisition costs for eight store leases, two of which were acquired
from a competitor in fiscal 2000 for $2.0 million. In 1999, lease acquisition costs of $3.0 million
related to five store leases were written off as impaired.

Note receivable consists of the Company’s participation in a privately placed mortgage note.
The Company paid Kmart Corporation (“Kmart”) $5.5 million in principal and accrued interest in
June 1996 for participation in the note. Principal is payable annually, and interest semi-annually at
a rate of 8.4%. The note has a remaining term of 14 years.

Debt issuance costs relate to the Notes and are being amortized over the five-year term of the
debt using the effective interest method. The Company wrote off $0.7 million and $0.3 million in
debt issuance costs in conjunction with its Notes purchases in 2000 and 1999, respectively. Loan
fees relate to the Credit Facility and are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of
the Credit Facility.

During 1999, the Company sold eight properties under a sale-leaseback agreement with SPI
Holdings, LLC. The properties were sold for an aggregate sales price of $46.8 million, and resulted
in a loss on sale of $3.1 million. The Company recognized $0.9 million of this loss in 1999, repre-
senting the excess of the carrying value of the assets sold over their fair market value. The remaining
loss was deferred and is being amortized over the lease term, which is 20 years for all properties.

Note 8: Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income taxes and extraordinary gain is as follows:

(in thousands) 2000 1999 1998

United States $ 6,250 $(130,985) $ (88,332)

Foreign 529 (12,355) (12,553)
Total $6,779 $(143,340) $(100,885)

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of:

(in thousands) 2000 1999 1998
Current:
Federal $ 1,741 $ (18,599) $ (5,441)
State and local 259 1,685 (1,500)
2,000 (16,914) (6,941)
Deferred:
Federal — 34,012 (22,012)
State and local — 3,596 (6,050)
Foreign — 5,705 (25)
— 43,313 (28,087)
Total $ 2,000 $ 26,399 $ (35,028)

The provision (benefit) for income taxes is included in the Company’s Statements of Operations
as follows:

(in thousands) 2000 1999 1998

Income tax expense (benefit) J— $ 22,721 $ (35,028)

Income tax expense on extraordinary gain 2,000 3,678 —
Total $ 2,000 $ 26,399 $ (35,028)
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A reconciliation of the federal statutory rate to the Company’s effective tax rate follows:

(in thousands) 2000 1999 1998
Federal statutory rate $ 9,599 $(46,951) $(35,310)
State and local taxes, net of federal tax benefit 168 3,433 (4,908)
Change in valuation allowance (9,271) 61,958 —
Goodwill and other non-deductible items 70 17,087 687
Foreign tax rate differential — (1,167) 3,617
Other 1,434 (7,961) 886
Total $ 2,000 $ 26,399 $(35,028)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities resulted from the following;:
February 3, January 29,

(in thousands) 2001 2000
Deferred tax assets:
Inventory $ 41 $ 774
Short-term accruals and other liabilities 12,084 11,167
Long-term accruals and other liabilities 14,907 12,323
Canada excess liabilities 907 3,221
Restructuring charges 25,945 26,848
Net operating loss carryforwards 6,927 13,212
Tax credit carryforwards 2,118 1,274
Other 2,613 1,796
Total deferred tax assets 66,042 70,615
Less: valuation allowance (52,687) (61,958)
Deferred tax assets, net of allowance 13,355 8,657
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment 12,550 7,763
Other 805 894
Total deferred tax liabilities 13,355 8,657
Net deferred tax assets $ — $ —

The Company has a net operating loss carryforward for federal income tax purposes of approxi-
mately $4.7 million, which will expire in the Company’s fiscal year ending January 2020. In addi-
tion, the Company has $1.8 million of federal alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards, which
are not subject to expiration. The Company has state income tax net operating loss carryforwards
of approximately $100 million, also expiring in varying amounts through the Company’s fiscal year
ending January 2020. The federal and state net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards could be
subject to limitation if, within any three year period prior to the expiration of the applicable carry-
forward period, there is more than 50% change in the ownership of the Company.

In 1999, the Company established a valuation allowance of $62.0 million on its net deferred tax
assets, based on the presumption that the realization of such assets could not be reasonably assured
given the losses incurred by the Company at that time. Additionally, in 1999, the Company wrote
off approximately $5.7 million of deferred tax assets attributable to its Canadian subsidiary that
would not be realized as a result of the Company’s decision to terminate its operations in Canada.
The Company had previously written down the Canadian deferred assets by $3.6 million in 1998.
In 2000, the valuation allowance was reduced by $9.3 million, principally as a result of the utiliza-
tion of approximately $22.7 million in federal and state net operating loss carryforwards. Further
reductions in the valuation allowance will be made as the deferred tax assets are realized or when
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management believes the aforementioned presumption can be overcome, principally by sufficient
profitable results.

Note 9: Current Debt

Current debt consists of the following:
February 3, January 29,

(in thousands) 2001 2000
Revolving Credit Facility $ — $129,725
5.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes 44,767 —
Current portion of capital lease obligations 989 819
Total $ 45,756 $130,544

The Notes mature on September 15, 2001, and are convertible at the option of the holders into
an aggregate of 1,371,748 shares of the Company’s common stock at any time until the maturity date,
at a conversion price of $32.635 per share, subject to adjustment in certain events. Interest is payable
semi-annually, on March 15 and September 15 of each year. The Notes are redeemable at the option
of the Company at any time on or after September 15, 1999 at declining redemption prices beginning
with 102.1% of par at September 15, 1999. The Notes are unsecured obligations of the Company
subordinated in right of payment to all existing and future Senior Indebtedness, as defined in the
Indenture pursuant to which the Notes were issued.

In 2000, the Company recorded an extraordinary gain of $18.6 million, net of tax, on the
purchase of $81.3 million principal amount of Notes for $60.0 million. The Company also recorded
an extraordinary gain of $5.5 million, net of tax, on Notes purchased in 1999. As a result of its
purchases through February 3, 2001, the Company’s outstanding obligation under the Notes has
been reduced to approximately $45 million.

Borrowings outstanding under the Credit Facility have been classified as long-term debt at
February 3, 2001 based upon the terms and structure of the agreement. (See Note 10 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Note 10: Long-term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following;:
February 3, January 29,

(in thousands) 2001 2000
Revolving Credit Facility $203,857 $ —
5.25% Convertible Subordinated Notes — 126,029
Long-term portion of capital lease obligations 1,243 —
Total $205,100 $126,029

In August 2000, the Credit Facility was amended to increase the committed line of credit from
$275 million to $335 million. In conjunction with this increase, the Company mortgaged 19 owned
store locations, with a net book value of $83.5 million, to supplement its existing pledge of inventory
and accounts receivable. Subsequent to February 3, 2001, the Company mortgaged one additional
owned location with a net book value of $2.6 million. The Credit Facility previously provided for an
interest rate margin on Eurodollar loans ranging from 1.75% to 2.25%, based on Collateral Availability.
Under the amendment, the Company agreed to pay interest at a 2.25% margin through January 31,
2001, after which the rate is once again determined with reference to Collateral Availability. The
Company was paying interest at a 2.00% margin over Eurodollar rates prior to the amendment.
The Credit Facility matures in September 2003.
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The Company’s weighted average interest rates on revolving credit borrowings were 9.1%, 7.4%,
and 6.6% in 2000, 1999, and 1998, respectively. Interest expense in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations is net of capitalized interest of $762,000 in 1998. No amounts were capi-
talized in 2000 or 1999.

Note 11: Other Long-term Liabilities
Other long-term liabilities consists of the following:
February 3,  January 29,

(in thousands) 2001 2000

Step rent accrual $ 32,267 $ 28,737

Long-term portion of store exit reserve 9,751 19,878
Total $ 42,018 $ 48,615

A majority of the Company’s store leases contain fixed escalation clauses. Rental expense for such
leases is recognized on a straight-line basis with adjustments to the corresponding step rent accrual.

The store exit reserve consists primarily of accrued lease obligations and costs, net of estimated
future sublease income, related to the Company’s store closing plans. (See Note 4 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements).

Note 12: Commitments and Contingencies

Prior to its Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) on November 23, 1994, the Company was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Kmart. Kmart continues to guarantee approximately 57 leases in effect or com-
mitted to as of the date of the IPO. Pursuant to a Lease Guaranty, Indemnification and Reimbursement
Agreement (“Indemnification Agreement”), the Company has agreed to indemnify Kmart for any losses
incurred by Kmart as a result of actions or omissions on the part of the Company, as well as for all
amounts paid by Kmart pursuant to Kmart’s guarantees of the Company’s leases. In addition, Kmart
has certain rights to acquire leased stores guaranteed by Kmart if its losses or unreimbursed guaranty
payments exceed certain levels or the Company fails to meet certain financial performance ratios.

Leases with respect to five of the Company’s stores serve as collateral for certain mortgage pass-
through certificates (the “Certificates”). The Certificates include a provision which would permit the
holders of the mortgage pass-through certificates to require the Company or, upon the Company’s fail-
ure, Kmart, to repurchase the underlying mortgage notes in certain events, including the failure by the
Company to make payments of rent under the related lease, the failure by Kmart to maintain required
debt ratings or the termination of the guarantee by Kmart of the Company’s obligations under the
related lease. In the event the Company is required to repurchase all of the underlying mortgage notes,
the Company would be obligated to either refinance or pay approximately $25.3 million.

The lease with respect to one of the Company’s stores serves as collateral for a privately placed
mortgage note (the “Note”) which is also secured by leases of adjacent tenants. The Note, of which
the Company’s original allocable share was $3.5 million, may be put back to Kmart in certain events,
including a decline in Kmart’s debt rating. Under the Indemnification Agreement, the Company must
reimburse Kmart for “losses” in connection with the Company’s allocable share of Kmart’s payments
on the put of the Note. The Note expires in June 2013.

The Company is one of thirty-three defendants, including firearms manufacturers and retailers,
in City of Chicago and County of Cook v. Beretta U.S.A. Corp. et al, Circuit Court of Cook County,
Illinois. This suit was served on the Company in November 1998. The complaint was based on
legal theories of public nuisance and negligent entrustment of firearms and alleged that the defend-
ant retailers sold firearms in the portion of Cook County outside Chicago that are found illegally

@



THE SPORTS AUTHORITY, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

in Chicago. The complaint sought damages allocated among the defendants exceeding $358.1 mil-
lion to compensate the City of Chicago and Cook County for their alleged costs (of which the com-
plaint enumerates a total of $153 million) resulting from the alleged public nuisance. The complaint
also sought punitive damages and injunctive relief imposing additional regulations on the methods
the defendant retailers use to sell firearms in Cook County. In February 2000, the Court dismissed
the complaint’s negligent entrustment count. The plaintiffs filed an amended complaint with the
Court’s permission in March 2000, which contains both the public nuisance and negligent entrustment
counts. In September 2000, the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois granted the motions of the
defendants to dismiss the amended complaint, with prejudice. In October 2000, the plaintiffs
appealed to the Appellate Court of Illinois, First Judicial District. The Company is currently unable
to predict the outcome of this case.

There are various other claims, lawsuits and pending actions against the Company incident to
its operations. In the opinion of management, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have
a material effect on the Company’s liquidity, financial position or results of operations.

Note 13: Leases

The Company conducts operations primarily in leased facilities. Store leases are generally for
terms of 10 to 25 years with multiple five-year renewal options which allow the Company to extend
the term of the lease up to 25 years beyond the initial noncancelable term. Certain leases require the
Company to pay additional amounts, including rental payments based on a percentage of sales, and
executory costs related to taxes, maintenance and insurance. Some selling space has been sublet to
other retailers in certain of the leased facilities. The Company also leases certain equipment used in
the course of operations under operating leases.

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases at February 3, 2001
were as follows:

(in thousands)

Year:
2001 $ 98,591
2002 98,297
2003 95,729
2004 95,104
2005 91,338
Later years 737,646

Total minimum lease payments 1,216,705

Less: minimum sublease rental income (17,502)
Net minimum lease payments $1,199,203

A summary of operating lease rental expense and sublease income follows:

(in thousands) 2000 1999 1998
Minimum rentals $96,067 $89,482  $101,866
Percentage rentals 19 (69) 80
Less: sublease income (1,039) (1,038) (1,023)
Total $95,047 $88,375  $100,923
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Note 14: Employee Retirement Plans

Employees of the Company who meet certain requirements as to age and service are eligible to
participate in The Sports Authority 401(k) Savings and Profit Sharing Plan and certain executives
are eligible to participate in The Sports Authority Supplemental 401 (k) Savings and Profit Sharing
Plan. The Company’s expense related to these plans was $2.0 million, $2.4 million, and $2.5 mil-
lion in 2000, 1999, and 1998, respectively.

The Company has an unfunded supplemental executive retirement plan for certain executives
of the Company. Pension benefits earned under the plan are primarily based on years of service at
the level of Vice President or higher after June 1990 and average compensation, including salary
and bonus. Pension expense was $0.4 million in 2000 and $0.8 million in 1999 and 1998. The
accrued pension liability, including obligations assumed by the Company related to the Kmart sup-
plemental executive retirement plan, was $2.2 million and $1.9 million as of February 3, 2001 and
January 29, 2000, respectively.

Note 15: Stock Purchase, Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plans

In connection with the IPO, the Company adopted the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the
“Employee Plan”) which allows the Company’s employees to purchase shares of the Company’s
common stock at a 15% discount from its fair market value. Shares purchased through the Employee
Plan are restricted from sale or transfer for one year from the date of purchase, except in the event
of a change in control of the Company, as defined in the plan, and certain other events.

In June 2000, the Company’s shareholders approved the adoption of the 2000 Stock Option
and Stock Award Plan (the “2000 Plan”), which merged and replaced the 1994 Stock Option Plan
(the “1994 Plan”) and the 1996 Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plan (the “1996 Plan”). Shares
available for grant are 4,273,783, which is the aggregate number of shares formerly reserved for
issuance under the 1994 Plan and the 1996 Plan. No more than 2,000,000 shares may be used for
grant of stock awards. The exercise price of options granted under the 2000 Plan may not be less
than the fair value per share of common stock at grant date. The Compensation Committee of the
Board (the “Committee”) has sole discretion to determine the vesting and exercisability provisions
of each option granted. In general, the term of each option may not exceed ten years from the date
of grant. The Committee has sole discretion to determine the restricted period for each grant of
restricted shares under the 2000 Plan. In order for shares to vest, the employee must remain in the
employ of the Company during the restricted period, except in certain circumstances and unless
otherwise determined by the Committee. Exercisability of stock options, and the restricted period
on stock awards, is accelerated on a change in control of the Company, as defined in the 2000 Plan,
and in certain other events. The 2000 Plan expires in March 2006.

Subsequent to February 3, 2001, the Company adopted the Salaried Employees’ Stock Option
and Stock Award Plan (the “Salaried Plan”). Under this plan, 1,600,000 shares have been reserved
for issuance under stock option and restricted stock grants to full-time salaried employees other
than “executive officers,” as defined in the Salaried Plan. All other terms and provisions of the
Salaried Plan with respect to vesting, price, exercisability and restricted periods are substantially
identical to those of the 2000 Plan. The Salaried Plan expires in March 2006.

In May 1999, the stockholders approved the Performance Unit Plan. Under this plan, execu-
tive officers and certain other employees are eligible to receive cash payments based upon the
Company’s attainment of an earnings per share target measured over a three year performance
period, unless otherwise specified by the Committee. The number of target performance units (with
an initial unit value of $1.00 and a maximum unit value of $2.00) are established at the beginning
of a performance period for each participant based on the participant’s role and responsibilities and
competitive levels of long-term compensation. The Plan is designed to be self-funding out of the
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Company’s earnings and involves no stockholder dilution. The Company recognized $1.2 million in
compensation expense under this plan during 2000. No compensation expense was recognized in 1999.

The Company recognizes compensation expense for restricted shares granted under the 1996
Plan and the 2000 Plan on a straight-line basis over the restricted period. The Company’s expense
related to grants of restricted stock was $0.4 million, $0.3 million and $0.9 million in 2000, 1999,
and 1998, respectively.

A summary of stock option activity is as follows:

2000 1999 1998

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding at

beginning of year 2,859,927 $ 8.61 2,934,197 $12.36 2,323,885 $14.86
Granted 1,478,050 2.35 1,469,725 3.97 1,314,321 9.81
Exercised — — — — (120,413) 12.18
Canceled (865,717) 9.46 (1,543,995) 11.32 (583,596) 16.65
Outstanding at end of year 3,472,260 5.73 2,859,927 8.61 2,934,197 12.36

Exercisable at end of year 827,760 13.52 773,202 14.35 1,105,226 12.72

Weighted average
fair value of options
granted during year $1.19 $1.82 $4.06

A summary of stock options outstanding at February 3, 2001 is as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Outstanding at ~ Weighted Average Weighted Weighted
Range of February 3, Remaining Average Exercisable at Average
Exercise Prices 2001 Life (in years) Exercise Price  February 3, 2001  Exercise Price

$ 1.50-$% 5.00 2,494,648 8.5 $ 3.05 29,898 $ 4.25
5.01- 10.75 375,775 6.5 8.87 197,025 10.75
10.76- 24.88 601,837 4.9 14.89 600,837 14.88
3,472,260 7.7 5.73 827,760 13.52

Available for grant
at end of year 351,523
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The Company used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted aver-
age assumptions in determining the fair value of options granted in 2000, 1999 and 1998: expected
volatility of 49%, 43% and 37 %, respectively; risk-free interest rates of 6.3%, 5.6%, 5.2%, respec-
tively; and an expected life of 5 years. The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25 (“APB 25”) and related interpretations in accounting for its plans. Since the exercise prices
of stock options granted equal or exceed the market value of the Company’s stock on date of grant,
no compensation cost has been recognized for the stock option plans. Had Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123 been applied, compensation expense under the stock option plans
and the Employee Plan would have been $1.0 million, $0.8 million, and $2.7 million for 2000,
1999, and 1998, respectively, and net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per common share would
have been as follows:

(in thousands, except per share data) 2000 1999 1998
Net income (loss) As reported $ 25,426 $(160,544) $(63,791)
Pro forma 24,800 (161,301) (65,517)
Basic and diluted earnings
(loss) per common share As reported $ .78 $  (5.02) $ (2.01)
Pro forma 77 (5.04) (2.06)

Note 16: Shareholder Rights Plan

In September 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan and
declared a dividend distribution of one “Right” per outstanding share of common stock. Each Right
entitles the stockholder to buy a unit consisting of one one-thousandth of a share of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Shares (a “Unit”) or, in certain circumstances, a combination of securities and
assets of equivalent value at a purchase price of $50 per Unit, subject to adjustment. Each Unit carries
voting and dividend rights that are intended to produce the equivalent of one share of common stock.

The Rights become exercisable only if (i) a person or group acquires 20% or more of the Com-
pany’s outstanding common stock, or (ii) a person or group announces a tender offer for 20% or
more of the Company’s outstanding common stock. In certain events the Rights entitle each stock-
holder to receive shares of common stock having a value equal to two times the exercise price of the
Right, and the Rights of the acquiring person or group will become null and void. These events include,
but are not limited to (i) a merger in which the Company is the surviving corporation, and (ii) acquisi-
tion of 20% or more of the Company’s outstanding common stock other than through a tender offer
that provides fair value to all stockholders. If the Company is acquired in a merger in which it is
not the surviving corporation, or more than 50% of its assets or earning power is sold or trans-
ferred, each holder of a Right will have the right to receive, upon exercise, common shares of the
acquiring company. The Company can redeem each Right for $.01 at any time prior to the Rights
becoming exercisable. Rights that are not redeemed or exercised will expire on October 5, 2001.
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Note 17: Quarterly Highlights (Unaudited)
2000 Quarter Ended

(in thousands, except per share data) April July October January
Sales $354,184 $389,595 $334,809 $ 420,256
Cost of merchandise sold 266,989 283,398 244,106 303,460
Operating income (loss) (3,992) 12,076 374 19,065
Income (loss) before extraordinary gain (8,219) 6,743 (4,649) 12,904
Net income (loss) 8,970 8,184 (4,649) 12,921
Diluted earnings (loss) before

extraordinary gain per common share (0.25) 0.21 (0.14) 0.38
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share 0.28 0.25 (0.14) 0.38

1999 Quarter Ended

(in thousands, except per share data) April July October January
Sales $356,517 $385,550 $327,255 $ 423,538
Cost of merchandise sold 264,959 284,393 244,026 338,919
Operating income (loss) (3,962) 7,787 (13,744) (123,135) (@)
Income (loss) before extraordinary gain (1,471) 2,265 (10,748) (156,107)@\b)e)
Net income (loss) (1,471) 2,265 (5,231) (156,107)
Diluted earnings (loss) before

extraordinary gain per common share (0.05) 0.07 (0.33) (4.85)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share (0.05) 0.07 (0.16) (4.85)

(a) During the fourth quarter of 1999, the Company recorded charges as follows: $8.9 million for store exit
costs; $88.8 million for asset impairments; and $1.3 million for cumulative translation losses related to the
Canadian subsidiary. The Company also recorded inventory-related charges aggregating $28.9 million for
excess markdowns, liquidations in connection with store closings and inventory shrink.

(b) During the fourth quarter of 1999, the Company recorded $28.8 million for tax charges (net of expected
tax refunds).

(c) During the fourth quarter of 1999, the Company reduced bonus and other accruals by approximately
$3.1 million.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Information concerning a change in the Company’s independent public accountants in April
1999 is contained under the caption “Ratification of the Appointment of Independent Public
Accountants” in the Company’s Proxy Statement dated May 18, 2001.

@



PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
OF THE REGISTRANT

The executive officers of the Company, and their business experience during at least the past
five years, are as follows:

Martin E. Hanaka, age 52. Mr. Hanaka was elected as Chairman in November 1999, after
having been elected as Chief Executive Officer in September 1998, and having been elected as Vice
Chairman in February 1998. From August 1994 until October 1997, Mr. Hanaka served as President
and Chief Operating Officer and a director of Staples, Inc., an office supply retailer. Mr. Hanaka’s
extensive retail career has included serving as Executive Vice President of Marketing and as President
and Chief Operating Officer of Lechmere, Inc. from 1992 to 1994, and serving in various capacities
for 20 years at Sears Roebuck & Co., most recently as Vice President in charge of Sears Brand Central.
Mr. Hanaka is also a director of Trans-World Entertainment (movie and video retail chain under
several brands) and RMS Networks, Inc. (a provider of advertising and information distributed by
broadband satellite networks).

James R. Tener, age 52. Mr. Tener joined the Company in June 1999 as Executive Vice President
and Chief Operating Officer. He previously served as Executive Vice President for Store Operations
of OfficeMax, Inc., an office supply retailer, from April 1996 to May 1999, as Chief Operating
Officer of Busybody Inc., a specialty fitness equipment retailer, from March 1995 to April 1996,
and as Senior Vice President for Operations of Pier 1 Imports, Inc., a decorative home furnishings
retailer, from 1989 to 1994.

Elliott J. Kerbis, age 48. Mr. Kerbis joined the Company in October 2000 as Executive Vice
President—Merchandising and Sales Promotion. He previously served as Senior Vice President of
Merchandise at Filene’s, a department store owned by The May Department Store Company from
May 1999 to August 2000, and as Executive Vice President of Merchandise for Hardlines of The
Caldor Corporation, a discount retailer, from 1987 to 1999. Prior to joining Caldor Corporation,
Mr. Kerbis served in various capacities with R.H. Macy & Co. from 1977 to 1987.

George R. Mihalko, age 46. Mr. Mihalko joined the Company in September 1999 as Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. He previously served as Senior Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer of Pamida Holding Corporation, a general merchandise retailer,
from 1995 to July 1999, and as Vice President and Treasurer of Pier 1 Imports, a specialty retailer,
from 1993 to 1995.

Arthur Quintana, age 51. Mr. Quintana joined the Company in October 1998 as Senior Vice
President, Supply Chain. He previously served as Vice President, Inventory Management and Logistics
at Sunglass Hut International, Inc. from July 1997 to October 1998, and prior to that as Vice President
of Replenishment at Office Depot, an office supply retailer, from 1990 to 1997.

There is no family relationship between any of these executive officers or between any such
officer and any Director of the Company. The remaining information required by this Item 10 is
incorporated herein by reference to the information under the captions “Election of Directors” and
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Company’s Proxy Statement
dated May 18, 2001.




ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to the information
under the caption “Executive Compensation” in the Company’s Proxy Statement dated May 18, 2001.

I[ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference to the informa-
tion under the caption “Stock Ownership” in the Company’s Proxy Statement dated May 18, 2001.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND
RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference to the information
under the caption “Certain Transactions” in the Company’s Proxy Statement dated May 18, 2001.




[ITEM

PART IV

14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND
REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) The following documents are filed with, and as a part of, this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
1. Financial Statements.

“Index to Financial Statements” contained in Part II, Item 8.
2. Financial Statement Schedules.

The schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or not required.

3. Exhibits.

Exhibits

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to the Form 10-K for 1994.

3.2 Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of the
Company, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Form 10-Q for the third
quarter of 1998.

3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.2 to the Form 10-Q for the third quarter of 1998.

4.1 Indenture, dated as of September 20, 1996, between the Company and The Bank of
New York, as Trustee, relating to the Company’s $149,500,000 5.25% Convertible
Subordinated notes due September 15, 2001 (including forms of note), incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Registration Statement No. 333-16877 on Form S-3.

4.2 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of September 20, 1996, between the Company
and Goldman, Sachs & Co., relating to the Company’s $149,500,000 5.25%
Convertible Subordinated Notes due September 15, 2001, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to Registration Statement No. 333-16877 on Form S-3.

4.3 Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated as of February 1, 2000 between the
Company and American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, as Rights Agent, incorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Form 10-K for 1999.

10.1 Lease Guaranty, Indemnification and Reimbursement Agreement, dated November 23,
1994, as amended, between the Company and Kmart Corporation, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Form 10-K for 1994.

10.2 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.9 to the Form 10-Q for the second quarter of 1995.

10.3 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Form 10-Q for the second quarter of 1997.

10.4 Management Stock Purchase Plan, as amended, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Form 10-Q for the third quarter of 1997.

10.5 Deferred Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Form
10-K for 1997.

10.6 Annual Incentive Bonus Plan, as amended, incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to
the Company’s Proxy Statement dated April 27, 1998.

10.7 Performance Unit Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to the Company’s Proxy
Statement dated April 26, 1999.

10.8 2000 Stock Option and Stock Award Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to

the Company’s Proxy Statement dated April 28, 2000.
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10.16
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10.18

10.19
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10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

Director Stock Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q for
the third quarter of 2000.

Supplemental 401 (k) Savings and Profit Sharing Plan, as amended effective January 1,
2001.

Employment Agreement dated April 30, 2001 between the Company and Martin E.
Hanaka.

Form of Severance Agreement dated January 11, 2000 between the Company and each
of James R. Tener, George R. Mihalko, Henry Flieck and Arthur Quintana, incorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Form 10-K for 1999.

Severance Agreement dated as of October 9, 2000 between the Company and Elliott J.
Kerbis, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 10-Q for the third quar-
ter of 2000.

Amended and Restated Joint Venture Agreement dated as of March 12, 1999 between
the Company and JUSCO Co., Ltd., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the
Form 10-K for 1998.

Amended and Restated License Agreement dated as of March 26, 1999 between the
Company and Mega Sports Co., Ltd., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to
the Form 10-K for 1998.

Amended and Restated Services Agreement dated as of March 26, 1999 between the
Company and Mega Sports Co., Ltd., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to
the Form 10-K for 1998.

Guaranty dated as of March 12, 1999 from JUSCO Co., Ltd. to the Company, incor-
porated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Form 10-K for 1998.

Agreement dated as of March 12, 1999 between the Company and JUSCO Co., Ltd.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the Form 10-K for 1998.

Agreement for Purchase and Sale and Leaseback, dated May 14, 1999, between the
Company and SPI Holdings, LLC, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Form 10-Q for the second quarter of 1999.

Letter Agreement, dated June 14, 1999, between the Company and SPI Holdings, LLC,

including form of Lease Agreement attached thereto, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Form 10-Q for the second quarter of 1999.

Second Amendment to Agreement for Purchase and Sale and Leaseback, dated May 14,
1999, dated as of July 29, 1999, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Form
10-Q for the second quarter of 1999.

Third Amendment to Agreement for Purchase and Sale and Leaseback, dated May 14,
1999, dated as of August 31, 1999, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the
Form 10-Q for the second quarter of 1999.

E-Commerce Venture Agreement between the Company and Global Sports Interactive,
Inc. dated May 7, 1999.

Amendment No. 1 to E-Commerce Venture Agreement between the Company and
Global Sports Interactive, Inc. dated May 14, 1999, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.29 to the Form 10-K for 1999.

E-Commerce Agreement between the Company and TheSportsAuthority.com, Inc.
dated May 14, 1999, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Form 10-K
for 1999.

E-Commerce Services Agreement between TheSportsAuthority.com, Inc. and Global Sports
Interactive, Inc. dated May 14, 1999, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to the
Form 10-K for 1999.
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10.27

10.28

10.29

21.1%
23.1%
23.2%

License Agreement between the Company, The Sports Authority Michigan, Inc. and
TheSportsAuthority.com, Inc. dated May 14, 1999, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.32 to the Form 10-K for 1999.

Agreement between the Company and Global Sports, Inc. dated May 14, 1999, incor-
porated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to the Form 10-K for 1999.

Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of August 3, 2000
between Fleet Retail Finance Inc., as Agent for the Lenders referenced therein, and the
Company and its wholly-owned United States subsidiaries, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q for the second quarter of 2000.

Subsidiaries of the Company.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

* Filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(b)

Reports on Form 8-K.

None.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized.

THE SPORTS AUTHORITY, INC.

Date: May 3, 2001 By: /s/ MARTIN E. HANAKA

Martin E. Hanaka,
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been
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dates indicated.
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